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8t September 2025
To,
The Manager
Listing and Compliance Department,
NSE Emerge
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051

Scrip Symbol: GIRIRAJ
Dear Sir/ Madam,

Subject: Intimation of 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM) scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 30
September 2025 at 1.00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we wish to inform you that the 20" AGM of
our Company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 30" September 2025 at 1.00 p.m. at the registered office
of the Company situated at 2™ floor, Nine square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, off Chandavarkar lane, Borivali
west, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092 to transact the business as set out in the Notice of AGM. Please
find enclosed the Annual report for FY. 2024-25 inter alia containing the Notice of AGM of the Company
along with the Explanatory Statement, which is being sent to the members.

The remote e-voting period begins on 27" September 2025 (Saturday) at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 29
September 2025 (Monday) at 5.00 P.M.

Pursuant to Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015
and Section 91 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain closed from
23" September 2025 to 30" September 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of ensuing 20" Annual
General Meeting.

The cutoff date/Record date for the purpose of dispatching the Annual report along with the Notice of
the Annual General Meeting was 5™ September 2025.

A copy of the said AGM Notice is also available on the website of the Company.
Kindly take the same on your record.

Thanking You
For GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Krushang
Mahesh Shah

KRUSHANG SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 07198525

Place: Mumbai

Encl: Annual report 24-25.

Giriraj Civil Developers Limited

An ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, ISO 27001:2013 & ISO 45001:2018 Certified Company
CIN L45200MH2005PLC156879; Web: www.giriraj.co
Registered/ Head Office: 2nd Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali-West,
Mumbai - 400092, Maharashtra. India. Ph: + 91 22 28906356 / 28702744 Email: giriraj.civil05@gmail.com/ info@giriraj.co



http://www.giriraj.co/
mailto:giriraj.civil05@gmail.com/
mailto:info@giriraj.co

Annual Report 2024-25.

GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERSLIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

FY 2024-25




GIRIRAJCIVIL DEVELOPERSLIMITED
CIN: L45200MH2005PL C156879
Annua Report 2024-25.

Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah

Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah

Director

Non-Executive - Independent Directors

Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai

Independent Director

Ms. Tina Jevvan Dass

Independent Director

Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia

Additional Director (Independent)

Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav

Additional Director (Non-Executive)

Mr. Shashikant Jayantibhai Rathod

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mr. Jay Bharatbhai Pansuria

Company Secretary (CS)

Registered Office

2nd Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off
Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
India, 400092.

Website -www.giriraj.co
Email: compliance@giriraj.co
Contact no. 022-28906356

Bankers

Yes Bank Limited

Statutory Auditors

M/s. RH A D & Co., Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 102588W)

Stock Exchange

NSE Emerge

Annual General Meeting

Tuesday, 30™ September 2025, at 1.00 p.m. at the registered
office of the Company.

Registrars And Share Transfer Agents

Cameo Corporate Services Limited

Subramanian Building 1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600002
SEBI Registration No. INROO0003753

Contact No. 91-44-28460390

Email ID — cameo@cameoindia.com

Website -www.cameoindia.com



http://www.giriraj.co/
mailto:compliance@giriraj.co
http://www.cameoindia.com/

GIRIRAJCIVIL DEVELOPERSLIMITED
CIN: L45200MH2005PL C156879
Annual Report 2024-25.

NOTICE OF 20""ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 20™ Annual General Meeting of the members of Giriraj Civil
Developers Limited will be held on Tuesday, 30™ September 2025 at 1:00 P.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company situated at 2" Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, off Chandavarkar
Lane, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors’ thereon:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon, as circulated to the
Members be and are hereby received, considered and adopted”.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah (DIN: 09540340), Director, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah (DIN: 09540340), who retires by rotation, be and is

hereby re-appointed as a director liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To appoint Secretarial Auditor of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), other
applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, as amended from time to time, M/s. Mehta & Mehta,
Practicing Company Secretaries having Firm Registration Number: P1996MH007500, a peer
reviewed firm be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for term of five
consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-30, at such fees,
plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed upon between
the Board of Directors or Chairman of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, (including its committees
thereof), be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms or submission of
documents with any authority or accepting any modifications to the clauses as required by such
authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected
therewith, or incidental thereto.”

. To Sell, Lease, Mortgage or otherwise disposed of whole or substantially whole of the undertaking
of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), and in
supersession of all the earlier resolutions, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors ( which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof, which
the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute) to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this resolution and with the power to delegate such authority to any person
or persons) to create mortgage (s) and/or charge (s) and/or hypothecation (s), and/or pledge (s) or
otherwise in such form and manner and with such ranking and at such time and terms as the
Board may determine, on all or any of its movable and / or immovable properties and assets of the
Company wherever situated both present and future or to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the
whole or substantially the whole of the such movable and/or immovable properties and / or
undertaking of the Company in favour of Financial Institution (s)/ Bank(s)/ Lender (s)/ Agent (s)/
Trust (s) for securing the borrowings availed/ to be availed by the Company, by way of loan (s)
and/or securities issued/ to be issued by the Company time to time, subject to the limits specified
under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, together with interest, cost, charges and
expenses thereon.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed
to include any Committee thereof, which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter
constitute) to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution and with the
power to delegate such authority to any person or persons) be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds and things and to sign all such documents and writings as may be necessary,
expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this resolution and for matter connected
therewith or incidental thereto.”

. Increasing the overall borrowing powers under Section 180(1)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act 2013, and in supersession of all the earlier resolutions, the consent of
the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof for the
time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by this Resolution), for
borrowing from time to time as they may think fit whether secured or un secured, in any form
including but not limited to by way of loans, financial facility, through the issuance of shares,
debentures, commercial paper or such other form, upon such terms and conditions as to interest,
repayment, or otherwise and with or without security, as the Board may think fit for the purposes
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of the Company’s business notwithstanding that the money or monies to be borrowed, together
with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from
the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall not exceed at any point of time a
sum equivalent to Rs. 1000 crore (Rupees One Thousand Crore Only) over and above the
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to arrange or
settle the terms and conditions on which all such monies are to be borrowed from time to time as
to interest, repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as it may think fit and to do all such acts,
deeds and things, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required.”

. Making Investment(s) and/or providing loan(s) and give guarantee(s) in excess of the prescribed
limits Under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier special resolution passed pursuant to provisions of
Section 186 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) (“the Act”) read
with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, applicable regulations framed by
Securities Exchange Board of India, if any, enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company and such other applicable laws and subject to other statutory
approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions, as may be necessary to be obtained from
appropriate authorities, to the extent applicable and wherever necessary, consent of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be deemed to include, unless the context
otherwise requires, any Committee, which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter
constitute or any officer(s) authorised by the Board or Committee to exercise the powers
conferred on the Board by this Resolution) to:

a) give loans, inter corporate deposits from time to time on such terms and conditions as it may
deem expedient to any person or other bodies corporate;

b) give on behalf of any person, body corporate, any guarantee in connection with a loan made by
any other person to, or to any other person by any body corporate; and

c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body
corporate

over and above the limits specified under Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 but shall not
exceed at any time a sum equivalent to Rs. 1000 crore (Rupees One Thousand Crore Only).

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (including Committee of the Board) be and is hereby
authorized to invest in the companies, body corporates, partnership firms, subsidiaries, associates,
joint venture, related parties entities or such other entities or persons as may be considered
desirable, whether incorporated in India or overseas, give loans to them, provide guarantees on
their behalf, within the limits, if any, as may be applicable from time to time and on such terms
and conditions as may be deemed fit and expedient.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to do all such
acts, deeds, things and to give such directions as may be deemed necessary or expedient including
acceptance and finalization of all such terms, condition(s), modification(s) and alteration(s) to give
effect above resolution including with the power to transfer/ dispose of the investments so made,
from time to time and to resolve and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in
regard to such investments, loans, guarantees and security and to finalize and execute all
agreements, documents and writings and to do all acts, deeds and things in this connection and
incidental as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit without being required to seek any
further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be
deemed to have been given approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

7. Related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), as per the recommendation
and approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, the consent
of the Members be and is hereby accorded to enter into the related party transactions by the
Company with the respective related parties and for the maximum amounts per annum, as
mentioned herein below:

Sr. | Nature of transaction as per Section | Name of  the | Name of | Amounts
No. | 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 Director/KMP who | the (Rs.InCr.)
is related and | Related
nature of their | Party

relationship
1 | Remuneration to Mr. Mahesh Kantilal | Name: Krushang | Mr. 0.36 P.A.
Shah, pursuant to Section 188(1)(f) of | Mahesh Shah, | Mahesh
the Companies Act, 2013. Managing Director | Kantilal
Relation: Father Shah

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any queries, difficulties,
doubts that may arise with regard to any transaction with the related party and execute such
agreements, documents and writings and to make such filings, as may be necessary or desirable for
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, in the best interest of the Company."

8. Increase in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Krushang M. Shah, Managing Director of the
Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder, the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and the
applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded
payment of remuneration to Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah (DIN: 07198525), Managing Director, for
the period commencing from F.Y. 2025-26 up to F.Y. 2026-27, comprising salary, perquisites,
allowances, benefits, amenities and other components, notwithstanding that the aggregate
remuneration payable may exceed the overall limits prescribed under Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act and the rules made thereunder.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the extent and scope of salary and perquisites of the Directors of the
Company be altered, enhanced, widened or varied by the Board of Directors in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the revision in the terms of appointment pertaining to
Remuneration, all other terms and conditions of appointment, as approved earlier by the
Members and which are not dealt with in this Resolution, shall remain unchanged and continue to
be effective.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be
considered necessary, proper, and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

. Increase in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah, Executive Director of the
Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder, the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and the
applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded
payment of remuneration to Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah (DIN: 09540340), Executive Director, for the
period commencing from F.Y. 2025-26 onwards, comprising salary, perquisites, allowances,
benefits, amenities and other components, notwithstanding that the aggregate remuneration
payable may exceed the overall limits prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Act and the rules made thereunder.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the extent and scope of salary and perquisites of the Directors of the
Company be altered, enhanced, widened or varied by the Board of Directors in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be
considered necessary, proper, and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

10.To re-appoint Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai as Independent Director of the Company for a period of
five years:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force)and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
proposed re-appointment of Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai (DIN: 01929190) , Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 for a further period of 5
(Five) years commencing from September 30, 2025 to September 29, 2030, and whose office shall not
be liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the above resolution.”

11. Approval of the appointment of Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia as an Independent Director of the
Company for a period of five years:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the Act, the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any other rules made thereunder and regulation
16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and in accordance with the Article of Association of the Company, Mrs. Bhumika Atul
Dedhia (DIN:11205952) who was appointed as an Additional Director (in the capacity of Non-
Executive Independent Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 23™
July 2025 pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in respect of whom Company has received a notice in writing under
section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his candidature for the office of
Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to
hold office for a term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. July 23, 2025 to July 22, 2030, not liable to retire
by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

12.Approval of the appointment of Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company:
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 including any other rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the
Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav (DIN:11016318) who was appointed
as an Additional Director (in the capacity of Non-Executive Director) of the Company by the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on 5™ May 2025 pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in respect of whom Company
has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Non-
Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 5" May 2025 who shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Date: 03.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai. Sd/-
Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525
Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at
the registered office of the Company before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution
together with the specimen signature(s) of the representative(s) authorized under the said Board
Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. Proxy form and route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto.

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

5. The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent to the members. A
member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 have been uploaded on the website of
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the Company at www.giriraj.co The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com

. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to get their

e-mail addresses submitted, by following the procedure given below:

(@) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to
sofia@cameoindia.com

(b) In case shares are held in Demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
to sofia@cameoindia.com

(c) Itis clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however
requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository
through the concerned depository participants and in respect of physical holdings with the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent Cameo Corporate Services Limited by following
the due procedure.

(d) Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep
their e-mail addresses validated with their depository participants / the Company’s Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Limited to enable servicing of
notices/documents / annual Reports electronically to their e-mail address.

. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the

AGM or who would like to ask questions or register themselves as speaker, are requested to write
to the Company mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at compliance@giriraj.co well in advance to enable the management to keep the
information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending
on the availability of time for the AGM.

. Members holding the shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify immediately, of the

information regarding the change of address and bank particulars to their respective Depository
Participant.

. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the

members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays and
Sundays, between 11.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. up to the date of the Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 23™
September 2025 to 30" September 2025 (both days inclusive).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of a Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN details to the Company or Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
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Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays and Sundays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

Copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Members are
requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

“Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is
providing to its Members the facility to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions proposed at
the Annual General Meeting by electronic means (‘e-voting’). The remote e-voting period shall
commence on 27th September 2025 (09:00 A.M. IST) and end on 29th September 2025 (05:00
P.M. IST). During this period, Members holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 23™ September
2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled thereafter.”

In compliance with the MCA & SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual
Report 2024-25 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses
are registered with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories. Further, in
accordance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, a letter providing the web-link for
accessing the Annual Report is being sent to those Members who have not registered their e-mail
IDs with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Special Business item nos. 3 to 12 is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

Statement giving details of the Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment is also
annexed with this Notice pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing
Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (“SS-2").

At the 16" AGM, M/S R H A D & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.: 102588W)
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e., until the
conclusion of 21 AGM to be held in 2026 of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), at its meeting held on 3™ September 2025, has
appointed Mr. Ronak Kalathiya, Partner of M/s Mehta & Mehta Practicing Company Secretary
Firm, Mumbai, as the Scrutinizer for the purpose of e-voting and poll process for this AGM in a
fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutiniser shall within two working days of conclusion of the meeting submit a consolidated
scrutiniser report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutiniser shall be placed on the website of the
Company https://giriraj.co/ and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com. The Company
shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the
shares of the Company are listed.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE
AS UNDER: -

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/
CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and
notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM
through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical
presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall
be conducted through VC / OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for
this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives
to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through
e-voting.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided
by NSDL.

4. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://giriraj.co/.
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available
on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The remote e-voting period begins on 27" September 2025 (Saturday) at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 29%"
September 2025 (Monday) at 5.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23 September 2025, may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23" September 2025.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode
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In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account _maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual 1. For OTP based login you can click
Shareholders holding on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp.

securities in demat

i You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No.,
mode with NSDL.

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.isp

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
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the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for

seamless voting experience.
MSDL Maobhile App is availlable on

i App Store . Google Play

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab
and then user your existing my easi username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login &

New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders (holding | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
securities in demat | Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
mode) login through | Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository
their depository | site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
participants feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can
demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

2.

. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a

. Your User ID details are given below :

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your
vote electronically.

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is
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b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID s
12xdxdkAA kKA A% then your user ID s
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’” which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request
at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,
your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active
status.
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and
also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option
on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote,
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to jpc@mehta-mehta.in with a copy marked to

evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can

also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Suketh Shetty at

evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this
notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@giriraj.co
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2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
compliance@giriraj.co . If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-
Voting facility.

The instructions for members for E-Voting on the day of the AGM are as under: -

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the /AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the /AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the /AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the /AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the /AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.
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Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013:

The following Explanatory sets out all the material facts relating to the items of special business
mentioned in the Notice.

Item No. 3:

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (the “Act”) every
listed company and certain other prescribed categories of companies are required to annex a
Secretarial Audit Report to its Board’s Report, as part of its annual disclosure obligations. The said
report is to be provided by a Company Secretary in Practice and forms a part of the company’s
compliance and corporate governance framework under Section 134(3) of the Act.

Additionally, pursuant to Regulation 24(A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) every listed
entity is required to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its Annual
Report. Pursuant to the amendments made to regulation 24A by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 w.e.f. December 12, 2024, from
financial year 2025-26 onwards a listed entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for a maximum of
two terms of five consecutive years, with shareholder approval to be obtained at the General Meeting.

In view of the above regulatory requirements and in order to ensure continued compliance and
governance standards, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment of M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Practicing Company Secretaries having Firm
Registration Number: P1996MH007500, a peer reviewed firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for a period of five consecutive financial years starting from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 i.e.
April 01, 2025 until March 31, 2030, subject to approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 3 of this Notice as
an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 4:

Pursuant to section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company can create mortgage (s) and/or charge (s) and/or hypothecation (s), and/or pledge (s) or
otherwise in such form and manner and with such ranking and at such time and terms as the Board
may determine, on all or any of its movable and / or immovable properties and assets of the Company
wherever situated both present and future or to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or
substantially the whole of the such movable and/or immovable properties and / or undertaking of the
Company in favour of Financial Institution (s)/ Bank(s)/ Lender (s)/ Agent (s)/ Trust (s) for securing the
borrowings availed/ to be availed by the Company, by way of loan (s) and/or securities issued/ to be
issued by the Company time to time, subject to the limits specified under section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, together with interest, cost, charges and expenses thereon.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.
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The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 4 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 5:

Pursuant to section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, and in
supersession of all the earlier resolutions, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be
deemed to include any Committee thereof for the time being exercising the powers conferred on the
Board of Directors by this Resolution), for borrowing from time to time as they may think fit whether
secured or un secured, in any form including but not limited to by way of loans, financial facility,
through the issuance of shares, debentures, commercial paper or such other form, upon such terms
and conditions as to interest, repayment, or otherwise and with or without security, as the Board may
think fit for the purposes of the Company’s business notwithstanding that the money or monies to be
borrowed, together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall not exceed at any point
of time a sum equivalent to Rs. 1000 crore (Rupees One Thousand Crore Only) over and above the
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 5 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 6:

In terms of provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder no
Company shall directly or indirectly, without prior approval by means of special resolution passed at a
general meeting, to make investments, give any loan to any person or other body corporate or give
guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and
acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body corporate,
exceeding 60 percent of its paid up capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100
percent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more.

In order to facilitate the operational and financial requirements of the Company, it is proposed to
grant authority to the Board of Directors to make investments, give loans, guarantees, or provide
securities in connection with loans and to make investments in body corporate(s)/trust/ firm etc. up to
an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 1000 Crore (Rupees One Thousand Crore Only). Since the
investments, loans, guarantees, or securities that may be provided by the Company to body
corporate(s)/trust/ firm etc. could be in excess of limits specified under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 6 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 7:
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The Company is into civil construction and has joint venture, common entities for various business
transactions. Therefore pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), as per the recommendation and approval of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, the consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded to enter into the related party transactions by the Company with the respective related
parties and for the maximum amounts per annum, as mentioned herein below:

Sr. Nature of transaction as per Name of the Director/KMP Name of the Amounts
No. | Section 188 of the Companies | who is related and nature Related Party (Rs.InCr.)
Act, 2013 of their relationship
1 [Remuneration to Mr. Mahesh |Name: Krushang Mahesh |Mr. Mahesh [0.36 P.A.

Kantilal Shah, pursuant to Section [Shah, Managing Director  |Kantilal Shah
188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, |Relation: Father
2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah & Mahesh
Kantilal Shah of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 7 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 8:

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013, the total managerial remuneration payable by a
public company, to its Directors, including Managing Director and Whole-time Director, and Its
Manager in respect of any financial year, shall not exceed 11% of net profits of that Company for that
financial year computed as per provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013.

As per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, w.e.f. 12" September 2018, the companies may pay
remuneration exceeding the aforesaid limit of 11%, subject to the provisions of Schedule V to the Act,
and Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013, with the approval of the members of the Company in
general meeting by way of Special Resolution.

The Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any bank or public financial institution or
nonconvertible debenture holders or other secured creditor, if any.

The company seeks to increase the pay of the managerial remuneration to Mr. Krushang Mahesh
Shah, Chairman and Managing Director from Rs. 24.00 LPA to Rs. 40.00 LPA comprising salary,
perquisites, allowances, benefits, amenities and other components from F.Y. 2025-26 up to F.Y. 2026-
27.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah of the
Company and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 8 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.
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Item No. 9:

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013, the total managerial remuneration payable by a
public company, to its Directors, including Managing Director and Whole-time Director, and Its
Manager in respect of any financial year, shall not exceed 11% of net profits of that Company for that
financial year computed as per provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013.

As per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, w.e.f. 12" September 2018, the companies may pay
remuneration exceeding the aforesaid limit of 11%, subject to the provisions of Schedule V to the Act,
and Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013, with the approval of the members of the Company in
general meeting by way of Special Resolution.

The Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any bank or public financial institution or
nonconvertible debenture holders or other secured creditor, if any.

The company seeks to increase the pay of the managerial remuneration to Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah,
Executive Director from Rs. 16.80 LPA to Rs. 24.00 LPA comprising salary, perquisites, allowances,
benefits, amenities and other components from F.Y. 2025-26 onwards.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah of the Company
and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 9 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 10:

As per the provisions Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), an Independent Director
shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company but shall be
eligible for re-appointment on the passing of a Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure of
such re-appointment in the Board's report.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, considers that given his professional background and experience, and
the contributions made by him during his tenure, the continued association of Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai
would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as an
Independent Director.

Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for further period of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board
of the Company commencing from September 30, 2025, to September 29, 2030. Mr. Radhakrishnan
Pillai is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He has
confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any order from SEBI
or any such authority and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company. The Company has
also received a declaration from Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai that he meets the criteria of Independence
as prescribed, both, under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai, pursuant to the provisions of (i) SEBI (LODR) Regulations and (ii)
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India are provided in ‘Annexure’ to the Notice.
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai of the Company
and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 10 of this Notice as a
Special Resolution.

Item No. 11:

Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia was appointed as an Additional Director (in the capacity of Non-Executive
Independent Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 23 July 2025.

In opinion of the Board, Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia possesses appropriate skills, experience &
knowledge and fulfils the conditions for appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the
Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that she is
independent of the management.

Accordingly, it is proposed to appoint Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for period of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the
Company commencing from 23™ July 2025 to 22" July 2030.

Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act. She has confirmed that she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue
of any order from SEBI or any such authority and has given his consent to act as Director of the
Company. The Company has also received a declaration from Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia that she
meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed, both, under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia, pursuant to the provisions of (i) SEBI (LODR) Regulations and (ii)
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India are provided in ‘Annexure’ to the Notice.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia of the Company
and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 11 of this Notice as a
Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 12:

Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav was appointed as an Additional Director (in the capacity of Non-Executive
Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 5" May 2025.

In opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav possesses appropriate skills, experience &
knowledge.

Accordingly, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav as an Non-Executive Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation, w.e.f 5" May 2025.

Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164
of the Act. He has confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of
any order from SEBI or any such authority and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company.
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The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav that he meets the criteria of
Independence as prescribed, both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Details of Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav, pursuant to the provisions of (i) SEBI (LODR) Regulations and (ii)
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India are provided in ‘Annexure’ to the Notice.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav of the Company
and/or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution as set out at item no. 12 of this Notice as a
Ordinary Resolution.

Date: 03.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai. Sd/-
Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525



GIRIRAJCIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN: L45200M H2005PL C156879

Annual Report 2024-25.

Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting

[Pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name of Directors Mr. Prasham Mr. Mr. Rohan Vilas | Mrs. Bhumika Atul
Nitin Shah Radhakrishnan Jadhav (Non- Dedhia
(Executive Pillai Executive (Independent Director)
Director) (Independent Director)
Director)
DIN 09540340 01929190 11016318 11205952
Date of Birth 06/08/1989 21/11/1974 11/04/1996 19/11/1982
Date of First 19/03/2022 14/08/2020 05/05/2025 23/07/2025
Appointment
Expertise in specific Execution of Leadership Compliance She is a seasoned
functional areas all expert, widely with all professional with over
infrastructure | recognized for applicable 18 years of experience,
projects from | his work on the central, state, holding a master in
inception to ancient Indian and local commerce and
completion. strategist regulations. He possessing a strong
Chanakya. He manages tax dual-domain expertise
played a key role | filings and in real estate and the
in integrating provides capital markets.
ancient Indian advisory on
wisdom with direct and
contemporary indirect tax
leadership matters.
models.
Terms and Conditions | Retire by Re-appointment | Appointment as | Appointment as

of
Appointment/Reappoin

rotation and
eligible for re

as Independent
Director for a

Non-Executive
Director, liable

Independent Director
for a term of Five

tment appointment | further term of to retire by years.
Five years. rotation.

Shareholding in the 5,88,000 NIL NIL NIL

Company as on 31°

March 2025

Skills and Capabilities | Strategic He brings to the [He liaises with In real estate, she has
leadership, Board his deep  |egal counsel and | demonstrated
aligning the expertise in regulatory bodies | proficiency in
company’s leadership, for audits and consultancy,
direction with | strategy, and legal brokerage, and end-to-
its vision and | governance. proceedings. end property
mission. transactions, with a

deep understanding of
market dynamics,
investment

opportunities, and
client-centric solutions.
Simultaneously, she
brings solid experience
in the share market,
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with hands-on
exposure to securities
trading, market
analysis, risk
management, and
ensuring regulatory
compliance. Her cross-
functional experience
showcases her
versatility, strategic
acumen, and ability to
seamlessly operate
across both asset-
based and financial

investment verticals.

Relationship with Promoter No relation No relation No relation
Directors/Key group
managerial Personnel
List of Companies/LLP | Giriraj Enlighten Games | NIL NIL
in which directorship Futurecon Private Limited,
is held as on 31st Private Atmadarshan
March, 2025 Limited, Cultural
Manka Discoveries
Business LLP Private Limited,
Chanakya
Institute of
Public
Leadership,
Chanakya
Aanvikshiki
Private Limited,
Gras Education
& Training
Services Private
Limited, Nair
Business Forum
Chairman / Member Member in Member in Audit | Chairman in Member in Nomination
of the Committee of Stake holder Committee, Corporate Social | and Remuneration
other Company relationship Stake holder Responsibility Committee
committee, relationship Committee
committee,

Corporate Social
Responsibility
Committee
Chairman in
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The members of
Giriraj Civil Developers Limited

Your Board of Directors (“Board”) are pleased to present this 20" (Twentieth) Annual Report of
Giriraj Civil Developers Limited (the “Company”) along with the Audited Financial Statements and

Report of Auditors thereon for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.

1. Company’s Financial Results:

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2025, is summarized below:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue From Operations 29470.85 13467.15 31429.90 17432.94
Other Income 440.83 247.18 418.48 165.58
Total Income 29911.68 13714.32 31848.38 17598.52
Total Expenses (27004.98) (12018.99) (28895.85) (15857.20)
Profit before Interest, 2906.70 1695.33 2952.53 1741.32
Depreciation, Taxation &
Extraordinary items
Interest & Finance Cost (328.97) (265.70) (344.59) (286.95)
Depreciation (145.41) (112.49) (145.41) (112.49)
Profit before Tax 2432.32 1317.15 2462.54 1341.88
Total Tax Expenses (644.08) (304.87) (674.30) (329.59)
Profit after Tax 1788.24 1012.28 1788.24 1012.29
Earnings Per Share (In. Rs.)
Basic 7.48 4.23 7.48 4.23
Diluted 7.48 4.23 7.48 4.23

2. Overview of Company’s Financial Performance:

On a Standalone basis, the Revenue from Operations for FY 2025 was Rs. 29470.85 Lakhs, higher by
118.84 % over the previous year’s Revenue from Operations of Rs. 13467.15 Lakhs. The profit after
tax (“PAT”) attributable to shareholders for FY 2025 was Rs. 1788.24 Lakhs, higher by 76.6 % as
against Rs. 1012.28 lakhs for FY 2024.

On a Consolidated basis, the Revenue from Operations for FY 2025 was Rs. 31429.90 Lakhs, higher by
80.30% over the previous year’s Revenue from Operations of Rs. 17432.94 Lakhs. The profit after tax
(“PAT”) attributable to shareholders for FY 2025 was Rs. 1788.24, higher by 76.6% Lakhs as against
Rs. 1012.29 Lakhs for FY 2024.
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However, internally we will be concentrating on increased operational efficiency, tighter credit
control, focus on retaining our share with existing customers, increased focus on increasing sales of
high value-added products and widening customer base.

No material changes have occurred from the end of the financial year till the date of this report
affecting the financial position of the Company.

There has been no change in the nature of the Business of the Company during the year.

3. Dividend:

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances, has
decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March
31, 2025.

4. Dividend Distribution Policy:

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), the Company
has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy. This Policy outlines the parameters and circumstances
considered by the Board while determining the declaration of dividends or retention of profits. The
Dividend Distribution Policy is available on the Company’s website at the following link:
https://giriraj.co/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/6.-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf

5. Transfer to Reserves:

There is no amount proposed to be transferred to general reserve this year.
6. Public Deposits:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling
within the meaning of the provisions of Chapter V — Acceptance of Deposits under Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

7. Share Capital:

Authorized Share Capital:

During the year under review the authorized capital of the company in the board meeting held on
21ST October 2024 has been increased from Rs. 25,00,00,000/- to Rs. 30,00,00,000/- The Authorized
Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000/- consisting of 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each.

Paid up Share Capital:
During the year under review the paid-up share capital of the company is Rs. 23,92,05,000/-. There
has been no change in the paid-up share capital of the company.
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Subsidiary, Joint Venture, and Associate Company:

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate company; the details of Joint ventures are as

follows:
Sr. No Name of Joint Venture % of Shareholding in JV
1 Prime-Giriraj-KK (JV) 25%
2 Dev Engineers-Giriraj (JV) 25%
3 R.K. Madani & Giriraj (JV) 40%
4 MBPL-GCDL (JV) 49%
5 GCDL-SMBIPL (JV) 49%
6 Giriraj GSEPL Consortium (JV) 70%
7 Giriraj-KK (JV) 51%

The Report on the performance and financial position of each of the joint ventures and salient
features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form AOC-1, are annexed to this report as

A

9.

In
of

nnexure-|.

Consolidated Financial Statements:

accordance with the provisions of the Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 33
the Listing Regulations and applicable Accounting Standards, the Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25, together with the Auditors’ Report forms

pa

rt of this Annual Report.

10.Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Yo

ur director’s state that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there is no material departure from the same;

i. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2025, and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

\"

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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11.Corporate Governance:

The Company is listed on the NSE Emerge SME platform of NSE, the compliance with Corporate
Governance provisions is not applicable to the company as per Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

12.Management Discussion and Analysis:

A brief note on management discussion and analysis is annexed as Annexure- Il which forms part of
the Directors Report.

13.Contracts and Arrangements with related parties:

All transactions entered with related parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length price basis. Suitable disclosures as required under AS 18 have been
made under notes to Financial Statements. Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements
entered by the company with related parties is in Form AOC-2 in Annexure Ill.

14.Declaration by Independent Director under sub-section (6) of section 149:

The Company has received a Declaration that the Independent Director meets the criteria of
Independence laid down in sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

15.Internal Financial Controls:
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls regarding financial statements.
16.Listing:

The equity shares of the company are listed on the NSE Emerge SME platform of NSE and the listing
fee for the financial year 2024-25 is paid to the concerned Stock Exchange.

17.Board of Directors& Key Managerial Personnel:

The Composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as
follows: -

Sr. No. Particulars Designation

1 Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525

2 Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah Executive Director
DIN:09540340

3 Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai Independent Director
DIN:01929190

4 Ms. Tina Jeevan Dass Independent Director
DIN:09540374

5 Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav Additional Director (Non-Executive)
DIN: 11016318
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6 Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia Additional Director (Independent)
DIN: 11205952

7 Mr. Jay Bharatbhai Pansuria Company Secretary

8 Mr. Shashikant Jayantibhai Rathod CFO

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah
(DIN:09540340) Executive Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board
recommends his reappointment for consideration of the Members.

Further, the Company Secretary Mrs. Mamta Prasad Chaoji had resigned from the post of Company
Secretary w.e.f. 31°* May 2024. The Company had appointed Mr. Jay Pansuria as a Company Secretary
w.e.f. 28" June 2024.

Furthermore, Mr. Devashish Kumar Modal resigned from the post of CFO w.e.f. 16" April 2015 and
Mr. Shashikant Jayatnibhai Rathod was appointed as CFO of the company w.e.f. 015" May, 2025.

18.Familiarization Programmes:

The Company has a Familiarisation programme for its Independent Director which is imparted at the
time of appointment of an Independent Director on Board as well as annually.

19.Annual Board Evaluation:

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees and of individual
directors on the basis of various aspects /criteria of board/ Committee Governance.

The criteria & aspects covered in the evaluation included knowledge to perform the role, level of
oversight, performance of duties and the fulfilment of Directors’ obligations and fiduciary
responsibilities, including but not limited to, active participation at the Board and Committee

meeting.

Further, the Independent Directors at their meeting, reviewed the performance of Board, Chairman
of the Board and of Non-Executive Directors.

20.Policies:

a) Policy for Selection of Directors and determining Directors’ Independence
1. Policy
Qualification and Criteria:
a) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), and the Board, shall review on an
annual basis, the appropriate skills, knowledge, and experience required of the Board as a
whole and its individual members. The objective is to have a Board with an understanding of

the industry & strategy of the Company.

b) In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the NRC may take into account
factors, such as:
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* General understanding of the Company’s business & industry.
* Educational and professional background
* Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values

c) The proposed appointee shall also fulfil the entire requirement as may be prescribed, from
time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant laws.

2. Criteria of Independence:

a) The NRC shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment, and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess
determinations of independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by a

Director.

b) The criteria of independence, as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 shall be followed.

¢) The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and other Employees:
A. Introduction

The Company has formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees keeping in view the following objectives:

i) Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable to attract, retain and
motivate, to run the company successfully.

il) Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear.
Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

B. Terms and References

In this Policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
i) “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.
ii) “Key Managerial Personnel” means

The Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;
The Company Secretary;
The Whole-time Director;
The Chief Financial Officer; and
Such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
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iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by the Company’s
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

C. Policy
1. Remuneration to Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

i) The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), shall
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of the Company within
the overall limits as per the law/ approved by the Shareholders.

ii)The Board, on the recommendation of the NRC , shall also review and approve the remuneration
payable to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

2. Remuneration to Non-Executive Director

The Board, on the recommendation of the NRC, shall review and approve the remuneration payable
to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company within the overall limits as per the law / approved
by the shareholders.

3. Remuneration to other employees

Remuneration to an individual employee shall be according to their qualification and work
Experience.

21.Training of Independent Directors:

Whenever new Non-executive and Independent Directors are inducted into the Board they are
introduced to our Company’s’ Organizational structure, our business, constitution, board procedures
and management strategy. They are provided with Company annual reports, etc.

22.Particulars of Employees and related disclosures:

In terms of the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 there are no
employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules.

The information pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request. In terms of section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and other entitles thereto, excluding
the information on employees and remuneration particulars which is available for inspection at the
registered office of the company during business hours on working days till the date of ensuing
annual general meeting of the company. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such
member may write to the Company in this regard. The disclosure is annexed as Annexure-|V.

23.Auditors and Auditor’s Report:

Statutory Auditor
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In the AGM held on October 30, 2021, M/s. R H A D & Co., Chartered Accountants, has been
appointed as Statutory Auditors for 5 years i.e., from the conclusion of 16th Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the 21st Annual General Meeting.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board has appointed M/s Mehta & Mehta, Practicing Company Secretary, Mumbai to conduct
a Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, is enclosed in Annexure-V to this Report.

Further, in the Board meeting held on 3™ September 2025, M/s Mehta & Mehta, Practicing Company
Secretaries (Firm Registration Number: P1996MHO007500) has been recommended to the members of
the Company in the ensuring Annual General Meeting for appointment as a Secretarial Auditor for a
period of five years commencing from F.Y. 2025-26 to F.Y. 2029-30.

The Company being listed on SME platform, the compliance with the Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to the Company.

24.Corporate Social Responsibility:

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the report of CSR is attached as
Annexure-VI of this report.

The detailed Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility is available on the website of the Company on
the web link provided below; https://giriraj.co/

25.Vigil Mechanism:

The Company’s whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism (a mechanism) is formulated for securing/
reporting deterring/ punishing/ rectifying any unethical, unlawful acts, behavior etc. and to enable to
voice/ address bonafide concern of malpractice, deviation from the policies of the Company internally
in an effective and systematic manner after its discovery.

The Policy on the vigil mechanism and whistle-blower policy will be available on the Company’s
website at www.giriraj.co

26.Code for Fair Disclosure, Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring, and
Reporting of Trading by Insiders:

The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the requirements of
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation,2015, The Insider Trading Policy of the Company
lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be made while dealing with
shares of the Company, as well as the consequences of violation. The policy has been formulated to
regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical
standards of dealing in Company securities.
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The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering code of practices and procedures for fair
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of
insider trading, will be available on our website www.giriraj.co

27.Meetings of the Board:

During the year under review, there were Ten Board Meetings held, the details are as under: -

wm
o

Date of Board meeting

No. of Director as on Date

of Board Meeting

No. of Directors presented in the
Board Meeting.

05.04.2024

4

28.06.2024

20.08.2024

30.05.2024

06.09.2024

21.10.2024

28.10.2024

14.11.2024

Ol Nl s|lw|N|R|=

04.02.2025

=
o

28.03.2025

R R R AR

AR R AR

28.Committees of the Committees:

The company has the following committees of the Board: -

a) Audit Committee:

The members of the Audit Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Members Designation
1 Ms. Tina Jeevan Dass Chairman
2 Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai Member
3 Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah Member

Number of Audit Committee Meetings (ACM):

Sr. No. Date of ACM No. of Members as on No. of Members presented
date of ACM in the ACM

1 30.05.2024 3 3

2 06.09.2024 3 3

3 21.10.2024 3 3

4 14.11.2024 3 3

5 12.03.2025 3 3

b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC):
The members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Members Designation
1 Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai Chairman
2 Ms. Tina Jeevan Dass Member
3 Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia Member
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Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah resigned as the member of NRC w.e.f 5" May 2025 and Mrs. Bhumia
Atul Dedhia was appointed as a Member of NRC w.e.f. 5™ May 2025.

Number of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings (NRCM):

Sr. No. | Date of NRCM No. of Members as on | No. of Members presented
date of NRCM in the NRCM
1 28.10.2024 3 3

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC):
The members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Members Designation
1 Ms. Tina Jeevan Dass Chairman
2 Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai Member
3 Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah Member

Number of Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRCM):

Sr. No. | Date of SRCM No. of Members as on | No. of Members presented
date of SRCM in the SRCM
1 28.10.2024 3 3

Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah resigned as the member of SRC w.e.f 5th May 2025 and Mr. Prasham
Nitin Shah was appointed as a Member of SRC w.e.f. 5th May 2025.

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR):
The members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Members Designation
1 Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav Chairman
2 Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai Member

Mr. Krushang Mahesh Shah Member

The said committee was constituted w.e.f. 5" May 2025. Therefore, no meeting was held during the
F.Y.2024-25.

29.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure in the
financial statements of the full particulars of the loan given, the investment made or guarantee given
or security provided and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be
utilized by the recipient of the loan or guarantee or security, if any, is disclosed in the financial
statements.

30.Development and Implementation of a Risk Management Policy:

The company does not envisage any risk, which may threaten the existence of the company. The
company takes all necessary steps to identify measures & manage risk effectively.

31.Annual Return:
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As per the requirement of section 92(3), every company shall place a copy of the annual return on the
website of the company, if any, and the weblink of such annual return shall be disclosed in the
Board's report. A copy of Annual Return of the Company will be available on our website
Www.giriraj.co

32.Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

Since Company’s business does not involve any manufacturing activity the information required to be
provided under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are nil / Not applicable.

Your company neither earned nor spent any foreign exchange during the year.
33.Secretarial Standards Compliance:

During the year under review, the Company has partially complied with all the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central
Government pursuant to Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013.

34.Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 during the financial year along with their status as at the end of the financial year:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, there was no application made and proceeding initiated / pending
by any Financial and / or Operational Creditors against your Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the “Code”). Further, there is no application or proceeding pending against
your Company under the Code.

35.Details of difference between the amount of valuation at the time of one time settlement and
the valuation done at the time of taking a loan from the banks or financial institutions along
with the reasons thereof:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has not made any settlement with its bankers for
any loan / facility availed or / and still in existence.

36.Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Your Company is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every woman working with
the Company. The Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any one which
may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment at workplace’. The Policy framed by the Company in
this regard provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for
prevention and redressal of such complaints. The Company has complied with the provisions relating
to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. ICC has been set up to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The status of the Complaints during the FY
2024-25 is as follows:

Particulars No. of Complaints
Number of Complaints pending as on beginning of the financial year NIL
Number of Complaints received during the financial year NIL
Number of Complaints disposed off during the financial year NIL
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Number of cases pending for more than 90 days NIL
Number of Complaints pending as on the end of the Financial Year NIL
37.Compliance With the Provisions of Maternity Benefits Act, 1961:

The Company has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefits Act, ensuring all
eligible employees receive the benefits and protections as mandated under the Act.

38.General:

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. No orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern
status and the Company’s operations in future.

2. During the period under review, there were no significant material orders passed by the
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its
future operations.

3. Your Company is committed to ensure a sound Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) performance
related to its activities, products and services. Your Company has been continuously taking various
steps to develop and adopt Safer Process technologies and unit operations. Your Company is
making continuous efforts for adoption of safe & environmental friendly and Monitoring and
periodic review of the designed SHE Management System are done on a continuous basis.

4. During the year under review Company has not done Credit rating.

39.Acknowledgment:

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation
received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, Board members and members of the
company during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place on record their deep sense
of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s employees.

Date: 03.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai. Sd/-
Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525
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Annexure-|

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or

associate companies or Joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries: Not Applicable.

Part B Associates and Joint Ventures Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act,

2013 related to Asseciate-Companies-and Joint Ventures:

Name of Asseciates Prime- Dev R.K. Madani | MBPL-GCDL | GCDL- Giriraj Giriraj-KK
or Joint Ventures Giriraj-KK Engineers- & Giriraj (V) SMBIPL (JV) | GSEPL (V)
(V) Giriraj (JV) (V) Consortium
(v)

1. Latest audited 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2025
Balance Sheet Date

2.Date on which the Audited No Audit Audited Audited Audited Audited No Audit
Asseciate-or Joint Mar 24 Mar 24 Mar 25 Mar 25 Mar 25
Venture was
associated or
acquired

3.Shares of Asseciate | 1-Jun-16 30-Oct-10 11-Oct-10 15-Feb-21 6-Apr-23 24-Jun-24 16-Aug-22
er Joint Ventures
held by the
company on the
year end
No. of Shares Not Not Not Not Not Not Not

Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Amount of 58.20
Investment in 12.26 1.95 214.03 53.56 574.85 8.34
Asseciates-or Joint
Venture
Extent of Holding 25% 25% 40% 49% 49% 70% 51%
(in percentage)

4. Description of how | Joint Joint Joint Joint Joint Joint Joint
there is significant Venture Venture Venture Venture Venture Venture Venture
influence Agreement | Agreement | Agreement | Agreement | Agreement | Agreement Agreement

5.Reason why the Not Not Not Not Not Not Not
associate/Joint Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
venture Is not
consolidated.

6.Net worth Not Not Not Not Not Not Not
attributable to Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
shareholding as per
latest audited
Balance Sheet

7.Profit or Loss for
the year
i Considered in (8.43) 0.02 23.82 3.49 23.43 0.25 8.34

Consolidation
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ii Not Considered - - - - - R
in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.: Giriraj GSEPL
Consortium (JV).

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Moksha
& Giriraj JV.

For and on Behalf of the Board
Giriraj Civil Developers Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Krushang Mahesh Shah Prasham Shah
Managing Director Director

DIN: 07198525 DIN: 09540340
Sd/- Sd/-
Shashikant J Rathod Jay Pansuria

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Annexure-l|
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. Industry structure and development:
Global growth is projected at 3.3 percent both in 2025 and 2026, below the historical (2000-19)
average of 3.7 percent. The forecast for 2025 is broadly unchanged from that in the October 2024
World Economic Outlook (WEO), primarily on account of an upward revision in the United States
offsetting downward revisions in other major economies. Global headline inflation is expected to
decline to 4.2 percent in 2025 and to 3.5 percent in 2026, converging back to target earlier in
advanced economies than in emerging market and developing economies.

Medium-term risks to the baseline are tilted to the downside, while the near-term outlook is
characterized by divergent risks. Upside risks could lift already-robust growth in the United States
in the short run, whereas risks in other countries are on the downside amid elevated policy
uncertainty. Policy-generated disruptions to the ongoing disinflation process could interrupt the
pivot to easing monetary policy, with implications for fiscal sustainability and financial stability.
Managing these risks requires a keen policy focus on balancing trade-offs between inflation and
real activity, rebuilding buffers, and lifting medium-term growth prospects through stepped-up
structural reforms as well as stronger multilateral rules and cooperation.

2. Overview:
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with requirement of Companies Act
and guidelines issued by SEBI.

3. Outlook:
The civil construction sector in India continues to remain a key driver of economic growth, backed
by sustained government focus on infrastructure development including roads, bridges, housing,
and urban infrastructure projects. Despite the rising cost of raw materials and construction inputs,
the demand outlook remains robust owing to increased budgetary allocations, faster project
clearances, and public—private partnership models.

Your Company, being primarily engaged in civil construction works, remains well-positioned to
benefit from these opportunities. A significant portion of the Company’s order book is derived
from government contracts, which ensures stable revenues and long-term visibility.
The Company is actively focusing on:
e Strengthening its project execution capabilities.
e Improving operational efficiencies and cost optimization.
¢ Expanding participation in large-scale infrastructure tenders.
e Enhancing its technical expertise and manpower base to meet complex project requirements.
e With construction output in India projected to reach INR 66,954.8 billion by 2027, the Company
aims to consolidate its position as a reliable partner in infrastructure development and
continue to deliver sustainable value to its stakeholders.

4. Opportunities and Threats
There are and always will be challenges, from outside & within. The company aims to address risk,
opportunities & threats posed by its business environment strategically. The improved economic
& investing activity may result in emergence of many opportunities, but these will have to be
carefully evaluated in the long-term interest of the company and its Shareholders.
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5. Sent wise Reporting
During the year under review Company had only one sent viz., Civil Contractor.

6. Risk & Concerns:
Your company is in continues process of cost control and is taking cost reduction measures. We
take all necessary steps to identify measures & manage risk effectively.

7. Internal Control System:
The company maintains an adequate and effective internal control & risk mitigation system
commensurate with its size & nature of Business. The observations of the audit committee were
taken into consideration.

8. Financial Performance:

* Gross revenue from operations was Rs.29911.68 Lakhs
* EBITDA for the year was Rs. 2906.70 Lakhs
* Net Profit for the year was Rs. 1788.24 Lakhs

9. Human resources management:
Relation with the employees continued to remain cordial during the year. Training is imparted as
per the requirement of the job.

10.Cautionary statement:
Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Statement forming part of Directors
Report may contain forward looking & progressive statements within the meaning of applicable
security laws & regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied depending
upon economic condition, Government policies & other incidental factors.

Date: 03.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai. Sd/-
Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525
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Annexure — Il

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract/ arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms-length transactions under third proviso there to.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not applicable.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Name (s) of the | Nature of | Nature Duration Salient terms of | Date  of | Amount
related party relationship of contracts | of the contracts or | approval paid as
/Arrangeme | the contracts arrangements by the | advances
nts /arrangements/ | or transaction | Board, if | ,ifany
/Transactions | transactions including the | any
value, if any
(Rs. In lakhs)
(@) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Krushang M. Shah | Managing Car Rental On going 3.00 05.04.2024 Nil
Director
Mahesh K. Shah Relative of Salary On going 24.00 NA Nil
Director
Mamta M. Shah Relative of Salary On going 12.00 NA Nil
Director
Reshal Shah Relative of Salary On going 6.00 NA Nil
Director
Quizal Shah Relative of Salary On going 12.00 NA Nil
Director

Date: 03.09.2025
Place: Mumbai.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Krushang Shah
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525
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Annexure IV

Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended and forming
part of the Directors’ Report.

Name of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and Name of Employees employed
throughout the financial year and who are in receipt of remuneration/drawing annual emoluments of
X 1,02,00,000/- per annum or X 8,50,000/- per month for the year; Not applicable

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) Of Companies Act, 2013 Read with
Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

A. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of
the Company for the financial year 2024-25 as well as the percentage increase in remuneration of
each Director, CEO, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary are as under:

Name of Director / Key | Ratioto Median Remuneration % increase in remuneration
Managerial Personnel over previous year
Mr. Krushang Shah NIL 0%
Mr. Prasham Shah NIL Not Applicable (1* Year)
Mr. Shashikant Rathod NIL Not Applicable
(appointed in May 2025)
Mr. Jay Pansuria NIL Not Applicable (1* Year)

B. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2024-25: ~0%
C. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025: 187.

D. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Particulars % Change in remuneration
Average increase in salary of employees 2.15%
(other than Managerial Personnel)
Average increase in remuneration of No increase

Managerial Personnel

E. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees is as per Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Date: 03.09.2025
Place: Mumbai.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 07198525
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Annexure V
FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

THE MEMBERS,

GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED

2" Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg,
Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali West,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Giriraj Civil Developers Limited (CIN:
L45200MH2005PLC156879) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the Financial year ended 31 March, 2025
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has complied
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the Books, papers, Minute books, Forms, Statutory Register and returns filed and
other records maintained by Company as given in Annexure |, for the period ended on as stated
above to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; to the extent
applicable

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;
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c¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011,

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

f)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,2013; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit period)

h)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

j)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, entered into by the
Company with National Stock Exchange India Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.,

During the period under review, the Company has partially complied with the provisions of SS-1
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries India (ICSl), as notified by the Central Government
under section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

During the period under review, the Company has not complied with the requirements of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the proper composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. However, subsequent to the close of the financial year, the Company has
rectified the non-compliance and is now in conformity with the provisions of Section 178.

Adequate notices are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda, and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by the consent of the
majority of Board members and Committee members as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.
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We further report that during the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors
was held, as per the provisions of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2025 is subject to Auditor's qualified remarks, if any as mentioned in the Independent
Auditors Report.

FOR Mehta & Mehta
Unique Code No.: P1996MH007500
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-

CS Monali Bhandari
Partner

UDIN: A027091G001156197

Place: Mumbai
Date : 3" September 2025

This Report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure “A” and forms an
integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’
THE MEMBERS,

GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Office No. 006/A Wing, Ground Floor,

Western Edge—2 Premises Co-op. Society Limited,
Western Express Highway,

Borivali (East), Mumbai — 400 066

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

FOR Mehta & Mehta
Unique Code No.: P1996 MH007500
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-

CS Monali Bhandari

Partner

UDIN: A027091G001156197

Place: Mumbai
Date : 3™ September 2025
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Annexure - |

List of documents verified

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

2. Annual Report for the Financial year ended 2024.

3. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, along with Attendance Register held during the
financial year under report.

4. Minutes of Annual General Meeting held during the financial year under report.

5. Statutory Registers.

6. Agenda papers submitted to all the directors / members for the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings.

7. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section
149,164 & 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Intimations received from directors under the prohibition of Insider Trading Code.

9. e-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year under report.

10. Intimations / documents / reports / returns filed with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the

Regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year under report.
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Annexure -ll

Registered office:

2" Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali West, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India, 400092.

> List of applicable laws to the Company and Audit Conducted by us for following laws

1.

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1956

The Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

The Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

LI XN ~wN

The Bombay Shop & Establishments Act, 1948

=
e

The Income tax Act, 1961

[E
=

The Profession Tax (State wise)

=
g

The Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

I
w

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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Annexure VI
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity
(Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time)

. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects/ programmes
undertaken:

The Company is committed to contribute to the society where we live and work and aspires to
continue its tradition of contributing to and investing in communities around its surroundings and
other facilities. So, the Company intends to take CSR activities which have a lasting impact on the
economic and social conditions of local people. All CSR Activities, initiatives, projects and
programs should always in promotion of activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act,
read with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company, as approved by the Board of the
Directors, is available on the Company’s website at https://giriraj.co/

A brief overview of CSR Activities:

The CSR Vision of the Company is - To actively contribute to the social and economic development
of the communities in which we operate and beyond. In doing so, build a better, environmentally
sustainable way of life for all the stakeholders, local community and society at large.

The Company has been actively working in the following major CSR activities, in accordance with
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

Healthcare and upliftment of the society

Education and Medical

Environmental sustainability and Rural Development

Welfare of under privilege and destitute children, including girl children

o Empowerment of physically / mentally challenged and underprivileged children, adults and
providing free education

. Composition of the CSR Committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company have constituted the CSR Committee comprising of
following members of the Board as member of CSR Committee;

Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee held
during the year

Number of meetings of
CSR Committee attended
during the year

Sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of
No. Directorship

1. Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav Chairman & Non- NIL NIL
Executive Director
2. Mr. Krushang Mahesh| Managing Director NIL NIL
Shah
3. Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai | Independent Director NIL NIL

3. Provide the web link where the Composition of the CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
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The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board is disclosed on the Company’s Website https://giriraj.co/

4. Provide the details of the Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report):

As per sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
every company having average CSR obligation of ten crore rupees or more in pursuance of
subsection (5) of section 135 of the Act, in the three immediately preceding financial years, shall
undertake impact assessment, through an independent agency. This is not applicable to our
Company, as the average CSR obligation in three immediately preceding financial years is less than
ten crores.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any: NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial years: Rs. 803.51

7. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 16.07 lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years - Nil
(c) Unspent amount carried forward from the previous financial year - Nil
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c+7d) - Rs. 16.07 lakhs

8. Details of CSR spent during the year 2024-25:
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (Rs. In lakhs)
Spent for the |1qta1 Amount transferred to Unspent| Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial ~Year. | cqp Account as per section 135(6). under Schedule VII as per second proviso
(Rs. In lakhs) to section 135(5).
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Amount. Date of
Fund transfer.
Rs. 16.50 NIL --N. A. --- --N.A. --- Nil ---N. A. ---

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
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(1 () () (V) (V) (V1) (v (v
Sr.  |Name of |ltem Local |Location of the| Amount |Mode Mode of
No |project from the | area |project spent for |of implementation -
list of| (Yes/ the implem- |Through implementing
activities | No) project |entation |agency.
in (Rs. In | Direct
schedul lakhs) (Yes/
e VIl to No)
the Act.
State | District Name CSR
registration
number
1. Medical and|Item | of | No Gujarat Ahmeda| 16.50 |No Raginiben | CSR000126
Health Care|Schedul bad Bipinchan |45
Support e Vil dra Seva
Karya
Trust
Total 16.50
(d)Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Not Applicable
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b + 8c + 8d + 8e) Rs. 16.50 lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set-off, if any
Sr. Particular Amount
No. (Rs. lakhs)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) plus 16.07
unspent amount carried forward from the previous financial year
(i) | Total amount spent for the financial Year 16.50
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.43
(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil
financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii) — (iv)] Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

10.(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Not Applicable

11.In case of creation or acquisition of a capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year — Not Applicable

12.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5) - Not Applicable
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13.CSR Committee Responsibility Statement

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities of the
Company are in compliance with the CSR objectives and CSR Policy of the Company.

Date: 03.09.2025 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai. Sd/-
Krushang Shah

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 07198525
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
Giriraj Civil Developers Limited

1. Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial Statements

1. Opinion

al We have audited the accompanying Standalons Financial Staterments of Giriraj Civil Developers
Limited {"the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement
of Prafit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatery information (herelnafter referred to as
“the Standalone Financial Statements”).

Ey In our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
sFarecald Standalone Finandal Statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act™ in the mannersa required and glve a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accaunting Standards)
Bules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting prirciples generally accepted in India, of the state of
affalrs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and s cash fiows for the year ended on
that date

2. Basis of Opinion

we conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act {SAs). Dur responsibliities under thosa
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company In accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI1} together with the
Independance requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion an the Standalone Financial Statements.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are these matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
nur Audit of Standalone finandal statement of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our Audlt of Standaione finandial statement as a whaole, and In forming ocur opinicn
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, There are na significant key audit
matters oheerved by us except the matters reported In the notes to accounts, —

4 NEL it Al !



4. Information Othar than the Standalona Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Theraon:

a) The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

k)

a)

b)

a)

b)

ather information comprises the nformation included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report induding Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibillty Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Standalone Financlzl Statements
and our auditor's report thereon, Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connmection with owr audit of the financial statements, our responsibiliby is o read the other
Information and, In doing S0, consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with
the standalone Flinanclal Statements or our knowledge obtalned during the course of our audit or
stherwise appears to be matedally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we condude
that there is no material misstatement of this cther information; we are required to report that fact,
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalona Financial Statements

The Compary’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financlal Statements that give a true and
fair view of the fAnandal position, inancial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting standard and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, This responsibility also Includes malntenance of
adequate acoounting records in accordance with the provisions of tha Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other regularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting polices; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudant; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal financlal controds,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and ocompletenass of the accounting
recards, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financlal statements that
give a true and fair view and ara free from materdal misstatemant, whether duoe to fraud or error,

In preparing the Standalone Financial Staterments, managament is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gaing
concarn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, The Board
of Directors are respensible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemants

Our objectives are to obtaln reascnable assurance sbout whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that indudes our opinlon, Beasonable assurance &5 a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaterment when [t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these Standalare Fnancial Statemants,

A5 part of an awdit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and malntain
professional skepticlsm throughout the audit. We also: =



d)

e)

i% Idertify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the standalone financial staterments,
whether due to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one rasulting
from error, as fraud may invoive collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, or
the override of internal control,

it} Obtaln an understanding of internal financial contrals relevant to the audlk In order to design audit
pracadures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(33(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controés with reference to financial statermants in place and the operating effectiveness of such

conbrols,

i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimatas and related disclosures mada by managemeant

v} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncertainky exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as-a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report ko the related disdosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are
Inedequate, to modify our opirden. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern

v} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
induckng the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Finandal Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatemeants In the Standalone Financlal Statements that, individually
arin aggregate, makes it probable that the economic dedisions of a reasonably knowledgeable usar of
the Standalone Fnancial Statements may be infivenced. We conslder guantitative materiality and
qualitative factors In () planning the scope of our audt work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect af any kentified misstatemeants In the Standalone Financlal Statemeanis,

Wea commiunicata with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and slgnificant audit findings, Including any significant deficlendes In
intermal controd that we idantify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and te communicate with them all relationshlps and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.



I[1. Report on other Legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

o)

=

d)

e)

4d)

h)

We have sought and cbtalined aH the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 5o far as
it appaars from our examination of those bocks,

The Balance Sheat, thae Staternent of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are In agreement with the relevant books of account

In our opinion, the aforesald stendalone financial statements comply with the accoumting
standard spacified undar Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2004

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified a5 on March 31, 2025 from
Being appointed as  a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financlal controls with reference to financlal statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmaodified cplnfon on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial contrals with reference bo financial staterments.

With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditar’s Report In accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Ack, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our
infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration pald by the Company to
its directors during the vear Is In accordance with the provisions of section 157 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in sccondance with Rube 11 of the
Companles [Auwdit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best af aur
information and according to the explanations given to us;

i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending Btigations on its financial position In its Standalone
Financlal Statements

i} The Company has made provisicn, as required under the applicabla law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, i any, on long-term contracts Incuding derlvative contracts

i} There has bean no delay In transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Camipany.

Iv} @) The management has represented that, to the best of It's knowledge and beliel, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or [Avested (either
from Dorrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to
or In any other person(s) or entity(ies), incuding foreign entitles ("Intermediaries*), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persens or entities identifiad in any manner whatsoaver
by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiares; il



biThe management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in cther parsons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Uitimate Benefidaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the lika an
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries; and

oh Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasanable and appropriate in
the clrcumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b} contain any material mis-statement.

d)The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year in contravention of the section
123 of the Compankes Act, 2013

i} Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software(s)
for maintaining its books of accownt for the Tinancial year ended March 31, 2025, which have a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughcut the vear for all relevant
transactions recorded In the software(s). Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across
any Instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies
phcoounts) Rules, 20014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reperting under Rule 11(g) of Companias {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 an preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) Issued by tha Central
Government in terms of Sectlon 143(11) of the Act, we ghve in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters
specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For R HA D K Co.
Chartered Accountants
— {Firm Reg, No. 102588W)

""l.--"-.1 — { _'."-.
; R
r‘ .\ &B%l_x

J {Dinesh Bangar)
s A Partner
\‘*-,: i ':j__.-. M. Mo, 036247

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 29/05/2025
LIDIM 2503624 7EMLWW Q4000



Annexura: A

Refarred to paragraph I1 (1) (f) under "Report on other legal and regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date to the member of Giriraj Civil Developers Limited on the financial statements for the
yvear ended March 31, 2025,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub - section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Giriraj Civil Developers
Limited ('the Company'} as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with cur audit of the financlal statements
of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company's management 15 responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals
Based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essantial companeants of intemal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audlt of Internal Financlal
Controls aver Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAIY.
These responsibilities Includa the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Intemal
financlal controls that were operating effactively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of fraud and errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial infarmation, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

3, Dur respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Mote an Audit
af Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing deemed Lo be prescribed under section 143{10} of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
af intermal financial controls, both applicable te an audit of internal financial contrals and both issued
by the ICAL Thase Standards and the Guidance Note raguire that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and If such contrals operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controds system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting Included obtalning an understanding of Internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exits, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control based on the assessed risk,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financlal skatemeants, whether due to fraud or error,

3. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ks sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
fer our audit opinien on the Company’s internal financial controls systems over financial reporting.

9_,-' |
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

G. A company’s Internal financial control over financlal reporting |5 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financlal reporting and the preparation of financial
statement for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's Internal financial contro! over financlal reporting Includes those policles and procadures that

I, Pertain to the maintenance of records that , In reasonable detall, accurately and fairly refleck the
transactions and dispositicns of the assets of the company;

ii. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financlal statements in accordance with generally acceptad accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the cempany are being made only in accerdance with authorizations of
management and direckors of the company; and

lil. Previde reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Becaute of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reparting, including the
possibllity of callusion or improper management override of cantrols, material misstatemants dua to
error or frauvd may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future pariocds are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, orF
that the degree of compliance with the policies ar procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

E. In our opinion, the Company has, in all maberials respects, an adeguate intemal finandal centrols
system over financial reporting and such internal financlal controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 basad on the intarmal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Indla.

ForRHAD & Co,

=%\ Chartered Accountants
[ 5 mmsn \ _'-J (Firm Reg. No. 102588W)
T
I = ({Dinesh Bangar)

Partner
M.MNo. 036247

Place: Mumbal
Dated: 29/05/2025



Annexure: B

Annexure-B Rafarred to in paragraph titled as 11(2) “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of Independent Auditors Report to Members of GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED for the year

ended 31* March 2025,

1 fa) [A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, Including  guantitative
details and situation of its property, plant and equipment.

(B} The Company is maintaining proper recards showing full particulars, including  guantitative detalls
and situation of Its Intangible assets.

[b) As explained to us the property, plant and equipment have been physically werified by the
Management at reasonable intervals during the year, We are informed that no material discrepancies
have been noticed by the management on such wverification as compared to the aforesaid records of
property, plant and eguipment.

(¢} As per the information and documents provided to us the company does not hold any immovabile
proparty, therefore question of tithe deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the
company does not arise,

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Eguipment during the year.

(2) According b the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
recards of the company, the company do not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions
[ Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

2 [a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable Intervals, and in
the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such verfication by the management s
appropgriate; there is no discrepancies of 10% or more In the aggregate for each class of inventory
viere noticed.

{b)The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crora rupees, in aggregate,
from a bank an the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly retums and statements filad by
the company with bank is in agreement with the books of account of the company.

3. tal The Company has granted unsecured loans to Parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 amount outstanding at the end was Rs. 0.01 Lakhs (The
maximurm amount sutstanding at any time during the year RBa, 66.23 Lakhs),

(b} Im our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us, the loans glven are
not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company, the company has not charged interast from
these parties.

fcy In our cpinion and according to the Information and explanations glven bto us, there was no
stipulation as to repayment of principal amount and Interest. However, such Loans and Interest are
repayable on demand.

4. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
compiled with the provisions of section 1B5 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has granted
loan to relabed parties during the vear to the extent of Rs, 0.01 Lakhs and interest thereon not charged;
year-end balance were Rs, 0.01 Lakhs towards principal.

bl I cur apnion and according to the informabon and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,



The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to deposit from the public
and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and tha provisiens of Sections 73 to 76
cr any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits acceptad from the public are not applicable,

It was informed that the central government has not prescribed for maintenance of cost records as
required under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(8] According to the Information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by
ug, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Gands
and Services Tax, provident fund, Ernployees state insurances, income-tax, sales-tax, sarvice tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues except T.D.S. with the
appropriate authorities, dues which have remained outstanding as at the last day of the finandal vear

concemed for a peried of more than six months from the data,

{b) According to the Information and ex
examined by us, there are no dues of
cess, value added tax which have not been deposited on

planatlons given to us and the records of the Company
duty of customs, duty of excise, and
of any dispute, except the

sales tax, service tax,

acoount

they became payable.

Income tax demand which have not besn deposited on account of a dispute are as follows:

| Name of the statute | Nature of | Amount Pariod to Forum where the
duas which the dispute is pending
(Rs. in amount
Lakhs) il
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income 7.63 | AY 2011-12 | The Commissiener of
Tax Income Tax (Appeals)
demand
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income 148.34 | AY 2018-19 | The Commissioner of
Tax Income Tax (Appeals)
demand
Goods and Service GiST, 1581.97 | Fy 2018-19 | APPELLETE AUTHORITY
Tax Act, 2017 demand for (AA) GST
(Maharashtra) Interest
and
Peanalty
Goods and Service G.5.T, 358.89 Fy 2020-21 APPELLETE AUTHORITY
Tax Act, 2017 demand for [AA) GST
Intarask
[Gujarat) and
Penalty
‘Goods and Service G.5.T. 137.99 [ Fy 2018-1% | Assistant Commissioner,
Tax Act, 2017 demand For Division-1, CGST and
& , Interast C¥, Thana
{ Gujarat ) and Commissionerate, Thane
| Penalty
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I gur apinion and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, there 15 no transaction of
surrendered of disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 {43 of 1961),

{a)The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b} The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or ather lender;
(c)Thea Company's term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;
(d)The company's funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes,

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

{f) The company has not ralsed loans during the vear on the pledge of securities held In its subsidlaries,
joint ventures or associate companies,

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the Infarmation and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised meneys by way of initial public offer (including debt
Instruments) during the year.

(2} In our opinion and according to the Information and axplanations given to us by the Company, thare
is ne fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the woar,

(b)In our epinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us by the company the
suditor has not come across any whistle-bigwer complaints received during the year against the
company, further this clause is also not applicable to the COMPEany.

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company Is not a
Nidhl company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xli} of the Order is nat applicable.

According te the information and explanations given to us and based an aur examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are In compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disdased in the financial slatements
as required by the applicable accounting standards,

In our apinlon the company has an Internal audit system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its businass.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has nat
entered Into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with iks directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinatian of the records
of the Company, the company is not required to be registered under sectlon 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, other para of Clause 16{b), {c) and (d} are alse not applicable to the Company.

Basad upon the audit procedures performed and tha informatien and explanations glven by the
management, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no Instance of any resignation of the statutery auditers occurred during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basie of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabillties, other information
Pl . el
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accompanying the financial statements, cur knowledge of the Board of Directors and franagement plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities exlsting at the date of balance sheet as and
when thay fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date, Wea, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a perlod of ane year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and whan they Fall due.”

20 The Company does not have any unspent amount under Corporate Social Reporting (CSR),

ForRH A D & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 102588W)
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VWOANEEL Partner

R - M.No, 036247
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Place: Mumbal
Dated: 29/05/2025
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{ Re.dn Lakhs)
Particulnrs Hots Az an s on
i, 3103/ 2035 j IEEEH
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1] SHARE MOLDERS" FUNDS ¢
Share copitad 3 2, 35205 2,.392.05
Resarves & Surplus 4 10, 720.78 #5932 54
13,112.83 11,324,598
2] NON CURRENT LTABILITIES |
Mon-current Liabdlities 5 101,80 1E67.13
Other non-current Lishilities [ 5,075 30 254,65
Defarrad @Ay Liabliities 2 w7 0,490
6, 0597.89 443,77
3] CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shoet- torm borrawing B 1, 946,51 E39.34
Trade pavablo £
-Tofel Qutstanding Cuies of Micro Enterprizes and
Small Enterprises 351,13 .
Total Cutstanding Dues of Creditors Othar Han of
Micro Enterprises and Smalf Enterprites 4.651.93 547544
Other current Linbilkisag 10 3227002 41,55
Shoert-term pravisions 11 LB, 20 f2.el
8,877.70 5,148.98
- .. — T L
ASSETS
1] NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Mant and Equipment and Tntanglble pssets
Property, Plait and Bquipmant i2 1,205,73 954,77
Intangible assets 12 4,52 §.27
Ran current nwestm s 13 933.19 1,168,468
Long-term |can & advances 14 4, TRE. 14 14%4.63
Other nan-current assats 15 2, 120.53 1. 010,33
9.040.11 669767
2] CURRENT ASSETS
Inwangories 16 700296 4, 26812
Trade recefvable 17 & 665 32 3,304.31
Cath & cach eqguivabants 1B 66D FHO. 4T
Shart term loans & advances 15 G7.17 243.20
Other current assets D 581535 160262
2004831 1021867

p— 1. .. - — 1 2

Corporata infarmation's and significant accounting policies 1&2
Arcnmparyieg nobes ferming part of tha l.nanu:..al gf.,tgmm

45 par Roport of eyen date .
FORRHAD &CO.
{Firm Reg.no.102588W)
CHARTERED ACCOLUINTA

Krushang Shah
(DINESH BaNGAR ] Managing Director

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ShE

PARTNER DINIOT7198525 DIMID9540340
Mem. Mo 036247

Place : Mumbai

Dol | 29/057 2035 Shashiksnt ] Rathod

I'_-HJJH E505 2T M L Bl D Chinf Financial Olficar

Pragham Shah
Executive Diractor
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Revanue from aperatian (Gross) 1 A4, Fi0.87F 1589792
LEEEGST On-Sakee — DX 3 A%.FF
Havenue fram opsration (kat) 20 470,85 13,467,115
Other [ncame I 240,83 247,18
—  A%WING8 0 13.714.33 |
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Fanw materal consumed traded 3 i2,B71.04 7,504, 20
{Increasa] / Degreass |n inventores 24 {2, 504.53) {287.749)
Girect Exparsas a5 5,278,326 3,452.02
Emploves benedit Exponses L] BEST.64 634,72
Cafiers Expenscs a7 502 62 310,85
Frofit Before Interest, Depreciathon , Taxation 2,908, 70 1,605.33
B Extraordinary Items
Inkerest & Financlal Cost Fd 32887 ZB5. M
Dagrociation 12 145.41 L1249
Profit Before Taxation 2,432.32 1,317.15
Less : Provision for
Incama Tax B1F.84 30040
[aferrad Tax [fsspts) G.a1 7.51
Laesadd): Adjustment of taxation of PY, 21,64 13,044
Prafit Arftar Taspkicn 1, Fid, 24 1,012,268
|Batance Carried to Balancs Shest 1, 788,24 1,002.28
Eaming per equity share
Basic T.88 a4.23
Ceiluted T.48 423
Wolghted avarage 748 a.30

Corporate infarmation's and significant accounting policies
Actomparing note=s fofming part of the Anandal stataqe
Mg pear Repaort of even date =
FORARHAD & CO,

{Firm Reg.no. 102588W )
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PARTNER
Mam, Mo, 036247
Piace | Mumbal

Dated : 28/05/2025
uotn: 253 62U Tl e L W B Uewd

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BDARD

Prasham Shah

Krushang Shah
Maneging Director Executive Diractor
DIN:OTI9ESE2S ‘_.. [EM: ﬂ'ﬂﬁ#l.‘_ltq
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i;ﬂ.:ll H_Ew HATFHIHT lﬂltTHE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 20I5 { Re.In Lakhs)
Fi Y R G Hear Ended Year Bnded
L T N kel D3/2025  31/03/2024
A] CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mot Profic awvailable for appropnation after e i, FiG, 24 1,012.28
Adfustment foe
Cezpreciation 14541 11249
Pegdiksinn for Tax 617.04 30040
Prowigion for Dafermed Tax O.ElL ¥.51
Aucljustment af Pravious year Tax 2164 (3.04)
Irderest & Finance Charges Pakl J2E.9Y 2E5.70
Irberast Tnenme Raceived {328.25) (143.32)
Share of Profitt Logs] of Joant Ventuna {50.92] (102,933
%ll‘.hl; 14009
Adfustment for chamge in Working Capital
[nwentaries (2, 714.54) {661.52)
Trada and other Hepeivables (3,.361.00) | 1,524.44)
Loan B Advances and Other Current Assets 16,123,20] [2,932.80)
Trads Lighilithes & Provisions 5440 13 1,155.98
CASH FLOW GENERATED PROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (31.39] 14.0
Lessi- Taxas Pawl [bet of refunds and intergst on refunde) §16,30 177.29
NET CASH FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES (Ad (65078} _{2,791.38)]
B] CASH FLOW FROM ITNVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchasa of Tkxed sty (391.62) $213.53]
Zale of flo=d assels - -
Sale/[Pisrchasa) af invesimants 245,40 (564 B G
Embarest Tncome recelvad 328.25 143.%2
Share of Profit] Loss) of Joint Venture 50.92 102,93
profit on Sake of Assats - -
NET CASH FROM IHVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) m 7.1
€] CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sswe af Equlty Shares 4,255 40
Procaads from Short erm Borrwing 74382 (307.76)
procesds fram Tenm Loan 4 55 174,92
Proceeds fram Unsecurad Borrawing [24.BE) {B48.97]
Isaue Expordes pald 5 {30.85)
Irtereak & Finanos Charges pald {322.497) (265 T0)
Miscedllanpous Expenses E -
MET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES { C) 404,93 3,034.04 |
—
SET INCREASE IN CASH AMD CASH BOUIVALENTS (A4gec) IS o (SPLAT)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINMNING OF YEAR 70042 47600
JEF G0 THO 43
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FOR R HAD B CO. FOR AND OMN QF THE BOARD
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES FORMING PARTS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 215" MARCH, 2025

1] CORPORATE INFORMATION

M/s. Giriraj Civil Developers Limited is a public limited company domiciled in Indla, incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956, as Girraj Civil Developers Limited. The company's equity shares are listed on
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) under the SME segment,

The registered office af the Company is located at:
Office No. 2nd Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali
(West), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India - 400092,

Since [ts Inception, the company has been primarily engaged in the business of civil construction. It has
executed a wide range of contract works for varlous govermment bodies, semi-government arganizations,
corporations, and private entities. The company operates across multiple Indian states, Inchuding
Maharashtra, Haryana, Himachal Pradaesh, Uttar Pradesh, and Madhya Pradesh, among others.

2] SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

iy These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Accounting Standards relerred to
in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified by the Central Government in exercise of
the power conferred under sub-section (1} (&) of section 642 and the relevant provisions of the
Compankes Act, 1956 read with the Rule 7 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

I} The financlal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention on accrual basis, The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company
unless otherwise stated,

ity All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the
Companys normal operating cycle and other critera set out in the Schedule 111 of the Companies Act
£013. Based on the time invalved betwean the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelveé months as ks ocperating cycle for the
purpose of classification of its assets and labllitles as current and non-current in the balance sheet.
Defarred tax assets and liabilities are dassified as non-current assets and liabilities,

USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of finsncial staterments requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reéported amount of assats and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual resuits and estimate
are reccgnised in the period in which the resuits are known J/ materialised.

REVENUE RECOGNITION:

The Company operates In construction industry and it earns revenue primarily from the Engineering,
Procurement and Construction [‘EPC') business, The contracts with the customers are of consknuction of
railways, construction of roads B highways, construction of commercial amd residential buildings,
electrification work and others.

The company provides these construction services on a flxed-sum turnkey basis as well as on cost plus
basis.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services (“performance
cbligation™) are transferred bo the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Compary expects to be entitbed in exchange for those goods or services {“transaction price”™),

i) Rewenue B mecognized using the percentage of completion method {as per Accounting Standard 7),
based on contracteg agpralsal. For residential and commercigi=sgiding contracts, revenue recognition is
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deferred until the 20% completion milestone Is reached, allowing for the issuance of the 1st Running
Account [RA) Bill.

i) Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised upon passing of title te the custemers, which generally
coincides with their delivery.

lii} Revenue from services is recognised upon rendering of services and bllled to the customers.

iv] Interest income is recognised on a tima proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the applicable interest rabe.

Property, plant and equipment:

Froperty, plant and equipment {except freehoid land} held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or
sarvices, or for adminlstrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses, if any. Historical cost Includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as & separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Freehold land 18 not depreciated. Depreclatbon |5 recognised o as to write off the cost
of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over thelr
useful lives, using the straight-line method.Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depredation, The cost of assets comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
assets to ks working condition for its intended use,

Depreciation commencas when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on Propery,
Plant and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method over their estmated useful life,
taking Into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, ete. Losses arising fram the
retirement of, and gains or Ipsses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are
recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.

The Company as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation, Its share in the
assets/liabilities held/ incurred jointly with the other parties of the joint arrangement. Revenue s
recognised for its share of revenue from the sale of output by the joint operation. Expenses are
recognised for its share of expenses incurred jointly with ather parties as part of the joint arrangement.

A jaintly controlled operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
amangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the labilities, relating to the arrangement
Jeint contrel is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decislons about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

When a Company undertakes its activities under jointly controlled operations, the Company as a joint
operator recognises In relation to its inkerest in a jointly controlled operation the assets, lahllities,
revenues, and expenses relating te its interest in @ jointly controlled operation In accordance with the
applicable Ind AS,

When a Company transacts with a jointly contrelled cperation in which a Company is a joint operator
{such as a sale or contribution of assets), the Company is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the jointly controlled operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Company’s financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the jointly controlled operation.

Whan a Company transacts with a jointly controlled operation in which a Company Is a joint operator
(such a5 & purchase of assets), the Company does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assels Lo b third party

TRADE RECEIVABLES:

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e.,
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are recognised initially at the tramsaction price as they do not contain significant fimancing
components. The Company hold the trade recelvable with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measure them subsequently at amartised cost using the effective interest
rate method less loss allowanca, if any.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES:
If & customar pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the cusbomer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is

earllerj. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company parforms under the
contract.

CASH AND CASH EQOUIVALENTS

Far the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricked cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and l2ss that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject te an insignificant risk of
change in valus,

DEPRECIATION:

|} Depreciabion on Fixed Assets |5 provided to the extent of depredable amount on the straight-line
Method, Depredation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013

it} Depreciation in respect of addition to the fixed assets |s provided on Pro-rata basis in which such assets
are acquired f installed,

iiiy In case of assets costing less than Rs.5000/- deprecationd® 100% is provided,
INVENTORIES:
Inventory of raw material are values at cost adopling FIFD Basis.

Wark in progress is valued at actual raw material cost and overheads. Construction costs incurred for
future contract activities are recognised as assets If it is probable that they will be recovered during the
contract period and classified as construction work-in progress under iInvantorias,

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

At each balance sheet date, the company review whether there is any Indication of impairment of the
carrying amount of the compary's fixed asseks. IF any indication exits, an asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An Impairment 058 15 recognised whenever the carrying amount of assets excesds ils
recoverable amount and charged to profit & loss account in the year in which assets |s identified as
impaired. The recoverable Is greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value In use,
the estimate future cash flows are discounted o their present value based on an appropriate discount
factor. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been changed
in the estimate of recoverable amoumnt,

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENFEFIT:

Shert term benefit payable to employees wholly within twelve months of rendering services such as
salaries, wages abc, are recognised in the perod in which the employes Fenders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plan: The Companys contribution to the state govemed emplovees provident fund

scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution pald/ payable under the scheme is recognized
during the peried in which the amploves renders the related servica.

Defined Beneflt Plan: The Company's employes’s gratuity is accounted on accrual basis based on
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TAX ON INCOME:

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination af
the net profit or loss for the pericd, Current Cax 5 measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject te the consideration of prudence in
respect of deferred tax assets, Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent
that there |5 a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each
Balance Sheet date, the company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, If any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right ko set off
the recognised amounts and there 15 an Intention to settle the asset and tha lability on a net basis,
Defarred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilitias relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSE OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT):

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, other short-term, highly liguid investiments with original maturities of thrae months or less that
are readily convertible to krown amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
Balance Sheat.

Cash Rows are reported wsing the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax Is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recaipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, Investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregabed based on the available informaticn.

Shart tarm borrowings, repayments and advances hawving maturity of three months or less, are shown as
nat in cash flow skabtement.

BPROVISION AND CONTINGENT LIARILITIES:

Prowvisions: Provisions are recognised when there iz a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
prebable that an cutflow of resources embodying econgmic bensfits will be required to settle the
obllgation and there is a rellable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Pravisions are measured at the
hest estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obdigation at the Balance sheet date and
are not discounted to its present value,

Contingant Liahilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obdigation arising from
paskt events, the axistence of which will be confirmed enly by the eccurrence or nen-occcurmence of ane or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that
arisas from past events whera it is either not probable that an outfow of resources will be required 1o
sekte or a reliable estimate of the amount cannat be made.

Contingent assets are naither recognised nor disclosed.

EARNING PER SHARES:

Blask: eamings per share are calculated by dividing the met profit or loss for the period atiributable ko
equity shareholders by the welghted average number of eguities shares outstanding during the pericd.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the peried and for all periods
presented Is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conwersion of potential equity
ghares that have changed the number of equity shares cutstanding, without a comesponding change in
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharehalders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
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Motes to accounts forming part of Balance sheet as on 31st March 2025
WOTE-3, SHARE CAPITAL

EHARE CAPTTAL

AUTHORISED:

3,00,00,004 { P.¥.3,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10/- sach 3,000.00 2,500,800
—00000 S L1

[SEUED, SUESCRIBED & FAID U

7,39,20,500 { P.Y.2,39,20,500) Equity snares of Rs. 10/- z,792.05 z,392.05

@i, fuly paid 1o

At the baginning of tha paried 43,920,500 235005 &, 044,100 40441
Ismiind chiring the pariod r . 19,88 A00 1,987 64
Dutstanding at the end of the peried #3,520, 500 2,352,085 23,924, 500 2.353.05

b} Terms) rights attached to equity shares
1.The Coerpany has caly one chass af ghares refermed to a8 aquity shares having & par walue of RBs. L0/~ Each hoider of equity shares s entitled te one
wate per share.

2.The company declares and pays dividends in Tndian rupess, The dividend proposed by the Board of Direciorns s subject b the apprenal of the
stareholders In the eneding Anaual Ganeral Masting,

3,The Company has only one class of shares referred o & eguity shafas having 3 par value of R, L0/~ Each Bolder of squity shares is enbtled to ane
vots pir share.

4, The Compary has alleited equity N (PY 7,40,000) aquty shares of RS, 10/~ cach at the premivm of ©F N& {P.Y. Rs 57 1/ Per shara) an
profengntial bases in PY 2023-34.

5. The companyy hes allotted bonus equity shares in Provicus Yaar total L591,36,4040 equity shares af Ra, 10/~ sach, four Eguity shares aloted for
ayary DNe existng eguity share hetd o dosing date of D371 542023

Details of sharehold

8,990,500

Krushdng M Shah
Tareija Agaraad 4,000,600 4,000,000
Mahesh K. Shak HLF 1,305,000 1,319,000

Wisdom Packaging Pl Lid 1,647 000 1,547 000

&s per the records of the camgany, imcluding it regisber. af the shareholdersy members and cther declarations received fram the sharaboklers
regarding henaficlal interest, the abewe sharebolding represent both legal and benefical ownerships of shares,

Krushang M Shah B.5390,500 AT 5E% 590,500 37 56

Mahesh K Shah HUF 1,319,000 5.51% 1,315,040 5 510y
Mahesh K Shah 200,00 I TEY: QCE, D00 3. 765
Mamta M. Shah 62,0400 4. 02% QE2, non 4.07%

Aeshal Shah B1,000 0,315 51,000 021%
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Blatarcs ay par |lest Nnandal siajements A1 L.00 381,00

A Amount transferred from Surplie A00.00 511.04 50,00 A1L1.00

CARITAL RESESVE

Palance a5 per lst Minancial statements 151.70 151,70

SECURITY PREMILIM

Balanon a& per [aed financal smbemssnis £,651.01 2,400.04

Add: Additonal during the wear - A, ES a0

Less! Uallsed for s of Bxves Shares . L, 913.64

Lessi Share hasd Expansins q,8691.0F 1085 4,681.60

Hetpireg C3rniees

SURPLUS TN THE STATESENT OF PROFIT & L 0S5

Balance as per last Mnancial sTasres=Ts 1, 63E.84 2,676, 50

B : Profic for the vesr 1,765, 24 101335

Leem: Tremiferred o General Resgr L300 532704 5, 0 1,838.84
A0, 71078 G354

] Halure and Purpose of Other Reserves

{a}  elnimed Esrnngs
R Edimangs représents the undistribubed prefite of the Comgaany,

(b}  Gemeral Roderes

Gieneral Reserye represents S sralubiey reserves, this is in accomancs with Conporate Law wherer o portion of prodit s agpoianed ba Geneesl
Rgserve, Undar Companies Ack 2013, the tronsfer of any amaunt 16 Geveral Heserve |5 ot the discretion of the Compamy,

[€ | Capital Reserve
Tra Capital Resarae rapresents ihe total eonount of prafit an forfeibed sharss pnd losn ssttement incoms.

[} Securities Pramium rassrve
Securties Ppremium is uead 1o record the premium on issee of shares. Tes & ullieed by sccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 7013,

5, MON-C

M & M Financial Serdoes Led il S 11761
State Bank of India 15,35 26,71
s Bank Lid 14,41 B.55
Kamgia Finsnce (Entdla) Limskad agdy 146,34 - 150.87

Term Cpany Yo 8 Conahicens
1. Secured term kxan froem M & & Finenciel Servioe Lid, repayable in 36 Monthiy Instaliminds, carry rete of Dnterest 13, 75% Pl
£, Secured yswess term lpsn from State Baniof India, repayanis o 60 Mastily Instefimerks, carry rabe of Tetorest 9. 255 FA

3. Sorured Business bermn loaen from Yes Baes LUbd, epayable in 60 Monthly Instalmesds, carry rsle of Interest 13,509 P During the vesr
campany  avaind [gan anocther loan of R 11.80 Lacs from ¥es Bank.
d. Secured Business term boan from Kogla Fnancs | [sdia] Chd, ropsysbis in 48 Morchly Dnstallments, carry. ra%e of Inganest 13:00% P4,

thndecaoa Lyl
From LS Mimpncial Instituies
Arihit Finvest Provals Linsibec 22.50 16,27
Uinity Small France Bank Limied 3,06 A% 58 a 1637
J.BI..H u?.]ﬂ
T Loai Jann & Conohlims

1 Uinseounsd Dusiness Loan froem. Ambit Fnsest Frivate Limited, régayable in 29 Montkdy Instalments, cery mbe of [nteroast 20% PA
£, Unseuned Dasinkss Loan frem Lnity Small Arance Bank Limited, repayabie in 24 Monthly Installimants, arry rabe of Inberess 20% 200
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atentien fsasuriy Dapest Paystis 2N8.04 107,73
Agkrance speinst Tender Depasic 136:53 L0, A5
Depasits from Ralated Pacty 2.500,00
[Rafer Mote Mo 34
Eamest Money Deposit fram Third Parly Jazso0
{Rafar Mot Mo 305
Grabufty payable 7 85 5,875.2 606 35488
Dapaaits from Related Party
Sralays [nirstech Privabe Limibed Is00.00

Ciffersnce in depredation on fesd weals as
i Ta basks and financal books T7.47 2227

Taming dilferanis 1 1:68) 3. 79 £1.20] Z0.55

[WOBNING CAPITAL LIMITS]
a] Cash Credit Limit from Yes Bank

(Werking Cappial Liswiis from Yes Benk ar ssouess by hypothecation on
antive curmenl dals both pravnt & futum |, sqeiioble morigege of o¥ce
praivaded @nd raskienial progartos of director, sad Nicther pereonal
guaiantee &f bwvo diractord of tha semparyg, kmiks ane repapsbie cn
diimiand -ni3ba Ra 31)

574.72 240.53

b) Working Capital ioan from NRFC

Fintraa Fianca Privale Linsitad D503 =
Thix Comparry las swalbed an uistouned workleg capiial ke frem Finbes

Firdince: Priepbe Limited, backed by the personal gearpnbes of Direcioe Hr.,

Praghan Stuih and a plidgs of ks paosnal sharslhiohing. The lsan cames

N inbeies raie al LES pEr gnnam

[l Cwrrent Matenittes pf Leog ferm.
Eprrowing
Kicgkn Firarce [[ndis) Limded 17.00 -
I & M Financial Services Lid 85,38 17,67
Stala Bl of linlla 750 5.dE
Vg Darks Lbd 365 113.53 1.53 2400
UNSECURED LOANS |
a} Frem HBFC) Financisl Institutes
Ambit Frroasy Private Limitad e 24847
unity Small Finange Bask Limed P 57 - 2447

e} Related parties

Kinushang M Ekaby 150,00 -

Mahesh E.5hah -

Nnalewa lifrabech Privaie Limfsd 29,02 22508 33535 306.35
£l Inturcoryorate Deposits

Corpordte Podes 178.97 3397
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NOTE-3, THADE FAYABLE

TRADH PAYABLE
Trade payabke adamat aoods and senioes
Te Rulpted Parties =

To Micro, Smail & Medurs Enterprises ay_
Tir Othar thim Micro, Small & Mediom
Enterprises 551,93 %,043,00 FATI. 44 LA

RMotes;

Ajesclasures a8 reguirad under Companies Act, 2003/ Micrs, Srasll and Medium Enterpises
Devmiapment L, 2006 (MSMED) are provddad in Haobs 32,

i) MSpE 3130 - s - .12

iny i 1.18 17 51849 E08.E8 455180
i (122 35) A |E55|-|1 !
i) Chigraitid Dean- MEME - = - = -

I¥] Cispated Crae-CRIers - = - =

Totalc- L LF ] i%.30 F1.83 iU 5,043.06 |
|2.288.48) [133.38] [FEAEL] {mTs.a1))  (RATEA4]

Rote:Priovases yesr Tigune shosn o |

atudory dues peyabie 1A% 626,35
Retantion Feecirity Dapsat Payadiles 022 18,53
Advwance from Relsted Farty L. A50,00
[Mcke Mo 33} .
Advanga Froen Dabhbors Eak 53 #
Qulstanding salsry & espensos
To Related Faties ooz w|w___
To Cther Farties ] 2,327.93 57.57 FHLEE
#zlvance fram Belated party
Ergem Balnded Partiss
Nl frafraicty Private Cinidag 1850
Outstamding salary & expenses
T Salated Pavtive
Maresh ¥ Shab 1700 1545
Kagshang Shan and 15.53
Casizal Shah . B.EE

Resal Shali z 20,02 IR -+ . ) a0
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{Separste Statemenk attachd) —ta 0 — FEA0A

S0 Bquity efares of Fulsrs Solar Lbd.of As. 80/-sach = 0
fully paid upc

INVESTMENTS TN JOUNT YONTURES [Refer Mote Mo, 341

Dev Enginesrs Girifa] 19 L 1.93

Moksha ConeErection Gl 1y " §.25

GO SMBEL I 579,85 B, 14

Sriral-GEEPL Corkumiinm 50,20 .

GErFaj-KK Ty A.34 i

MBPL GCDL W 53,56 o1.78

Prima-fkira)- ke (14} 13,26 IO RY

H.K.Madhanl Griraj IV 214,03 52310 150.23 1,068.63

[Unsecuiad, comildened good §

Tandar Dapoaits
Governmant Tandar daposits 4527 #50.22
rhar Tandur Duposits (Refer Mote Na 35) 1,161.05 1 496,00
Senurity Deposits 9716 50,19
Foed Depasit with Bank 1,182 .66 1, 648,23

[Torsnrds Beok Grsranbe: aed EED e
Tershers <Flued Caposits wih aripins! mabarity

of more than 12 mornths) =IE£ '1-IHIE

{Unsecurad, considersd good )
Regantinn Monay
Govermment Dapt, Robention Mooy A, BHZ.63

Balsnce with Goevarmmant Aullsaritas
TS & Income Tpx ([ncome Taw Faymeants loss

Provigion] 136,01 113.02
GET Reouivable! GET paka under Protest 1d8.80 255,71 11466 Freld
l—#’% —m

(A5 rakan, vaissd ard cartifad By e Manbgermesnt]
Aare Flaterial .24 45L. 0
Woek In Frogiesg &80, 12 3,060
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CEIRI R A

Legs than @ Months- 1-2 13 Hare than 3 Tetal
| e & Months 1 Vear Years | Years Years
17 UnGisoute (Fra W cansianed BASE Lk 105 12 = 2 P & B 1T
ood 02803 [b.24) : Z a7, 7 ST ¥ ]
1) Undisptizd Trsde recemyvables- corsidered X =" 2 . T L
ihaubiful B 3 % 2
] Desputed Trads rmocs v ebles-conssdered - i 5 = s =
i} Disputed Due-Oihers = - - = -
Tutalz- EIVEIN ERIAE] - E Era -] #4068, 32 |
| {E.243) E T+l (2raarg 13,304.353 |

b Prw binis par figure shewn in  §

i Crarant aoounks
In Fied Deposit (Margin Mongy)
|~ Dirpoesits wildi Chrigirusd Malerity of Less Then 3 Morghs)

{Unsecured, consldered good }
Sundry Loan and Adwanrces

Tor Asbabesd Peaties {*]

fa Others

Lo felnled Pariin
Giriraj Corporation
Giria) Futuracon Privata Lismnad

EF5.04

PN . 1

741.90

.08
97.16 97.47
— 0.01

Fd B ]

59,10
184,10 243.20
%a.10

= Sg.10

{Ureacured, consdared good |
Advance recoverstike inocash o knd far sakies

o b raceivad
Frepaid Expenses
S ity Cpmesiy
Fiwed Dapost in Bapk
(Cposis

Bl fiank Gourastee with Original

Maturity of Morme Than 3 Mondhs bub Less Than
12 Monthe: b

Tender Depasits

Ratintion Honay

GET Credit f Refundabie

Daposit - Projact Eaplorsion {Mobs & 56)

L1

a, g
A4at5d4

192,65
J34.00
1347
3,332 82

A5 94
167
i

278,93
558.09%9
0.3
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

NOTE-211, REVEMUE F l:lﬂﬂﬂ!

Sale of Services
Contreet Receipt 34,582.64 15,770.78
Lese: GST on Cantract raceipt 5,220,46 29,362.18 2,405.86 13,364,932
Sale of Products
Traded Goods 128,23 127.14
Less: GST on traged gaods 19,56 108.67 24.91 102.23

29,470.85 13, 467.15

MOTE-22, OTHER INCDMES

Interest Receed 328,25 143.32
Shara of ProfitiLoss) of Joint Venbure 50,92 102,92
Crther Inoome 3.32 0.94
Rent Income 58.33

440,83 247.18

Inventories at the Beginning of the Year 491,64 117.50
Add ¢ Purchase of Goods 11,944,46 7.389,07
Add ; Sub Contract Paymenk 11,136.84 B94. 26
23, 571.93 B,400.83
Less: Inwenlotes at the End of the Year 701849 4491 .64
22,871.09 7,909.20

NCREASE] . Rs. Im I.I

s L

Work in progress
Invankories at the and af the yaar 6.301.12 3.796.49
Less: Inventories at the peginning of the year 3 796.49 3,5!]!1.7-‘13

~ (2,504.63) (2,504.63) (287.79)
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NOTE-25,DIRECT EXPENSES

|

Labour Contract Payments 2,671.12 2,280.35
Equipment Hire Charges 400 28 AZ20.52
Power & Fuel Charges 4592 70 51267
Toll Tex & Boarder Crossing Fes 12.68 26,68
Factory Rent Rate and Taxes 54,87 44, 44
Consiting fes for Desiging, Approval and Production 1,102 85 114,02
Lab Testing Charges 33,93 15,26
Repalr & Maltonance-Plant & Macheneries 124 33.07

5,.278.26 3,452.02

Salary bo Office Stalf

Providend Fund & ESI Contribution 308 o |
Gratsty 1.5% 2.04
Skaff Welfare & Medical Exp. 132. 7% 31.08

OTE-27,

Traveling, Conveyance, Lodging & Boarding 153,285 B7.13
Telephone & Internet Charges 1,45 1.58
Professional & Legal Expenses 79.06 58,73
Rent Paid 5.5 40,45
Printing & Stationery 3.66 6,73
Electricity Charges A.08 3,40
Busingss Fromdmion G.96 .57
Insuramnca Eramium 19,00 .39
Repair & Maintenance 7.91 11,55
Vehicle Repalr & Malntenance 10.45 +.33
security Changes 68.57 41.03
Donation (CSRE Exp) 16.52 6.75
(hote Mo 36)

Payment to Stetutory Auditors (net of goods and sarvice
tax Inpuk credit, whare applicable)
-85 auditors (for audit of financlal statemants and lemitad

FEVRRIWSE) 5.00 3.00
- Tar [ax audst =

- Tor certificetion wark 0.35 0.40
Internal Auditor Fiees -

Miscedlpneon s Expensas F8.71 27.74

502.62 310.85

NOTE-28, INTEREST & FINANCIAL COST fs. In Lakhs

Interest to Bank & Others 22440 152.86
Financial Charpes 104,58 1184
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NOTE NO 29 DEPOSIT -PROJECT EXPLORATION

The Company has received a security deposit of 7 2500 Lakhs (total agreed: 24000 Lakhs) from
a related party in connection with the proposed subcontracting of a construction contract
currently being executed by the Company. Upon receipt of the full depaosit, the Company will
formally assign or subcontract the remaining scope of work under the existing contract to the
related party,

The amount recelved is classified under Mon-Current Liabilities as “Deposit from Related
Party”, as the arrangement involves performance obligations extending beyond 12 months.

NOTE NO 30 DEPOSIT - FROM THIRD PARTIES

The Company has received a security deposit of ¥ 3023.00 Lacs (Total agreed: #5000 Lakhs)
fram a third party against the future allocation of flats/constructed area, which the Company will
receive as part consideration under an ongoing construction contract.

If the Company does not receive the total agreed amount, the funds received may elther be
refunded or forfeited, based on mutual understanding.

Upon receipt of the full deposit, the Company will execute the relevant agreements, and the
designated area will be transferred to the third party. The amount recelved Is classified under
Mon-Current Liabilities as "Depaosit from Third Party”, pending completion of the project
and execution of the formal agreement.

NOTE NO 31 WORKING CAPITAL AND BANK GUARANTEE FACILITY

During the year, the Company enhanced its working capital facility from #300 Lakhs to F600
Lakhs and its non-fund-based limit (bank guarantees) fram ¥ 2500 Lakhs to F4300 Lakhs with
Yes Bank Limited. These facllities are secured by the Company's current assets, investments,
cash flows, residential property of directors, personal guarantees of directors, and commercial
assets of a sister concern firm.

The non-fund-based limit is utilized primarily for issuing bank guarantees to government
departments, either directly, through third parties, or on behalf of joint ventures. These
guarantees are further secured by fixed deposits and the abave-mentianed collateral,

As on 31st March 2025, the outstanding bank guarantees amount to ¥ 2874.65 Lakhs (Previous
Year: ¥ 2887.69). The guarantees are primarily performance and security-related in nature.
Based on management assessment, no material liability Is expected to arise. Hence, no provision
has been made in the financial statements.

MNote No 32 - Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosures required under section 22 of the micros, small and medium enterprises development
Act 2006

The Company has certain dues to suppllers registered under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED
Act are as follows:
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Particulars fis at As al
31st March, 31st March,

2025 2024

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplie 391.12 =

at the end of the year
Interest due on above —

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms o =
Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyand|
the appointed day during each accounting year® i

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - =
delay in making payment (which have been pald but
beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without
adding the interest specifiad under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at tha =
end of each acoounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and - =
payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually pald to
the small entarprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006

1)

Disclosura of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006" i5 based on the information avallable with the Company regarding the
status of registration of such vendors under the sald Act, as per the Intimation received fram
them on requests made by the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts [ interest
payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date except Rs,

47.44 Lacs (company did not made provision for the interest on overdue amount],

NOTE NO 33 ADVANCE FROM RELATED PARTY

The Company has recelved an advance of 1850.00 Lacs from a related party lfor conducting a
market search and Identifying potential project oppartunities. The search aims ta explare
potential ventures for jeint development, The amount is classified under Other Current
Liabilitias as “Advance from Related Party ",

NOTE MO 34 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

The company has entered into the following joint venture agreements lor execution of the
construction projects.

Detalls of the Company joint ventures are as under ;-

The Company is joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm M/fs. Prime - Giriral-KK {1V, balance
in Capital Rs. 12.26 Lakhs Debit Balance, {P.Y. Rs, 20.69 Lakh Debit Balance) Detalls of joint
venture Partners and their Share In the firm are as follow: -
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Name of Partner Uy of
Profit /loss
Prime Enterprlses 51%
Girira) Civil Developers Ltd 25%
—KI{ Eﬁgineeﬂng 2455
Total I. 100%

Z) The Company is joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm M/s. Dev Engineers - Giriraj (1V),
balance In Capital Rs. 1.95 Lakhs debit Balance, (P.¥. Rs.1.93 Lakhs debit Balance) Details of
Joint venture Partners and their Share in the firm are as follow: -

Mame of Partner % of
Profit/loss

Dev Enginears 7RG

Giriraj Clvil Developers Lid 25%

Total 100%

3) The Company was joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm M/s, Moksha Construction Giriraj,
balance in Capital Rs. Nil (P.Y 6.25 Lakhs debit Balance). Details of joint venture Partners and
their Share in the firm are as follow: -

Name of Partner L™ of
Profit/loss

Moksha Construction B4

Giriraj Civil Developers Ltd 36%

Total 100%

4) The Company is joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm M/s. R.K. Madani & Giriraj, balance in
Capltal Rs. 214.03 Lakhs debit Balance, (P.Y. 190.21 Lakhs debit Balance) Details of joint
venture Partners and their Share in the firm are as follow: -

Name of Partner %o of
Profit/loss

R.K. Madani BO%

Girira] Civll Developers Ltd A0%s

Total 100%

5) Tha Company is joint venture Partner in Jeint venture firm MBPL- GCDL (1V), balance in Capital
Rs, 53.56 Lakhs debit Balance, (P.Y, 91.27 Lakhs debit balance) Details of joint venture Partners
and their Shassa in the firm are as fallow: -




G

Giriraj Civil Developers Limited gigirau

I_ '~ Name of Partner LT of
Profit/loss

i Mehrotra Bulldcon Private Limited 51%

|. Giriraj Civil Developers Ltd 49%

| Total 100%

6] The Company is joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm GCDL SMBIPL{IV), balance in Capital
Rs, 574.85 Lakhs debit Balance, (P.Y. Rs 858.26 Lakhs debit balance) Details of joint venture
Partners and thoir Share In the firm are as follow: -

Mame of Partner U of
Profit/loss |
Shree Manglam Bulldcon (1) Pyvt. Ltd 21% '
Giriraj Civil Developers Ltd 49%
~ Total 100%

7) The Company is joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm Giriraj GSEPL Consortium (IV),
balance in Capital Rs. 58.19 Lakhs debit Balance, (P.Y. Nil debit balance) Detalls of joint venture
Partners and their Share in the firm are as follow: -

Name of Partner CTH of
Profit/loss

Giriraj Civil Developers Ltd F0%

GS Express Private Limited 0%

Total R 100%

B) The Company s joint venture Partner in Joint venture firm Girira) KK IV}, balance in Capital Rs.
B.34 Lakhs debit Balance, {P.¥. Nil debit balance) Details of joint venture Partners and their
Share in the firm are as fallow: -

Mame of Partner Yo of
Profit/loss

Giriraj Civil Developers Ltd 51%

KK Engineering Pvt Lid 49%%

Total 100%

NOTE NO 35 Deposit Paid- EMD

The company has paid an advance deposit of Rs., 3161.05 Lakhs to MNexsa A Realtors and
Developers Limited against work orders pertaining to residential and commercial building
prajects. The consideration for these projects will be received partly in cash and partly in the
form of allocated space withln the I.';|L||I|:I|nl.:.| The company intends to directly EE” the allocated
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NOTE NO 36 DEPOSIT -PROJECT EXPLORATION

G

RIRAJ

The Company has paid a deposit of Rs, 3332.31 Lacs to a third party for identifying potential
project appertunities, No specific project has been finalized. Upon receiving a satisfactory report,
the Company may consider a joint development work or as per mutually decided by party, The
deposit is classified under Non-Current Assets as "Deposit - Project Exploration™. MNo
impairment has been recognized as of the reporting date.

Note No 37- Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company Is required to spend, in every
financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy.
The Company became llable te undertake CSR activitles from the financial year 2024-25, as it
met the applicabliity criteria for the first time. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as

under:

Particulars |Fur the year ended For the year ended !
e — . 31" March 2025 31% March 2024
1.Gross amount required to be spent by the | 16.07 lacs Mot Applicable

Company during the year
2. Amount approved by the Board to be spent during | 16,52 Lacs Mot Applicable
the year _
3. Amount of Expenditure incurred on: Mote Applicable
On Constructlon/ acquisition of any asset* -
_On purposes other than above | Rs 16,52 Lac
4, Shortfall at the end of the year Mil Mot Applicable
5, Raason for Shorkfall M. A, Mot Applicable
&, Mature of CSR Activities MEDICAL AND | Mot Applicable

HEALTH CARE

= SUPPORT -

7. Detalls of related party transactions in relation to | None Mot Applicable
CSE expenditune

Mote Mo 38 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-15 Employee benefit

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratulty Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of

employment.




MOTE NO 39 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-19 Gratuity provision

Provision of gratuity liabilities for the financial year 2024-25 made during year on the basis of

Girira) Civil Developers Limited ,

valuation report.
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' Sr. No. Particular FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24
1: Actuarial Assumption
I, Discount Rate 5.85% P.A. | 7.20% P.A.
ii. Rata of increase in compensation 7.00% P.A. 7.00% P.A,
jil. Employee Attrition rate { Past service : | 10.00% P.A, | 10.00% P.A,
0-42})
v, Expected average remaining service
v. The estimate of future salary Increases, | 10.00% P.A, | 10.00% P.A,
considered in actuarial valuation takes Into | at  younger | at  younger
account inflation, seniority, promotion and | ages Bges
other relevant factors such as supply and | reducing Eo | reducing . to
demand factors in the employment market | 2.00% P.A | 2.00% P.A at
at pclder | older ages
..... ages
2. Changes in the Present Value of Obligations B
i, Present Value of Obligation at the beginning E.05 4.02
of the yvear | e
li. Current Service cost 2.16 2.09
lil. Interest Cost 0.43 0.29
iv. Past Service cost == ==
V. Benefits pald == e
vi. Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on Defined Benefit (1.00}) (0.34)
abligation .
vil. Present Value of Obligation at the end of 7.64 6.05
the year
3. Amounts to be rec-n-gnlﬁed in the Balance - =
__Sheet_
| . Present Value of Obligation at the end of the 7.64 6.05
year i
i Fair value of plan assets at end of -
period
i, Funded Status = et
= ! iv. Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/{Loss) - =
¥. Unrecognized Past service Cost-non vested = =c
| benefits
| wvi. Net Asset/{Liability] recognized in the 7.64 6.05
) balance Sheet
- 4, Expense recognized in the statement of PEL =|
AfC
i, Eurrent Service Cost 2.16 | 2.09
- ; .43 | 0.29 |

RIRAJ
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iii, Past Service Cost-{non vested benefits) -] -
Iv. Past Service Cost-(vested benefits) = -
¥, Unrecognised Past service cost- non vested e BE
benefits
vi. Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for {1.00) (0.35)
the period
vil. Expense (Income) recognized In the (1.53) (2.04)
statemeant of P & L Afc
5. Movements in the Liability recognised in
Balance Sheet
i. Opening Net Liability 6.06 4.02
il, Expenses (Income) as above 1.58 2.04
jii. Contribution pald = -
iv. Closing Net Liabllity 6.06
L =] 8.64
B | Revised Schedule VI
i. Current Liability 0.30 0.30
ii. Non-current liability 5.76 576

Note No 40 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-20 Earning per Share
(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars F.Y.2023-24 F.Y.2022-23 |
Profit After Tax ] 1788,23 1012.27
Number of Shares (Face Value Rs.10/-] 2,39,20,500 2,39,20,500
Mumber of Shares under weighted 2,39,20,500 1,21,96,548
average (Face Value Rs.10/-)

Basic Earning per Share in Rs. 7.48 423
Welighted Average Earning per Share in 7.48 8.30

Rs.

NOTE NO 41 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-18 Related party
transactlons

The names of the related parties, key management personal, the nature of their
transactions and their values are given herein below:

Name of Related Parties Mature of Relationship
Krushang Shah Director
Prasham Shah Director
Krushang Shah HUF Relative of Director
Mahesh K. Shah Relative of Director
Mamta Shah Relative of Director
Reshal Shah Relative of Director
Quizal Shah Relative of Director
_dinalaya Infratech Pvt. Ltd, Coemmon Directors
Giriraj Futurecon Private Limited Common Directors
: - Girira] Corporation Associate Concern =
Krushang Enterprises . Associale Concern
GCOL-SMBIPL {1V Associate Concemn o

Associate Concern
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Dev Engineers Giriraj 1V Assoclate Concern 1
Moksha Construction Giriraj JV Assoclate Concern
Prime-Giriraj- KK JV e Associate Concern
R.K. Madhan| B Giriraj Civil 1V Associate Concern
Giriraj KK engingerring Jv Associate Concern
Giriraj Futurecen Private Limited Associate Concern
GSEPL Girira] IV Assoctate Concern
Transactions with related partias {Rs in Lakhs)
Name of Parties Particulars FY 2024-25 F.Y.2023-24
Krushang Shah Director Remunaration 24,00 24.00
Loan received GHal.949 415.78
Loan repaid 554.26 550,15
Loan Given - 149.97
Loan received Back - 145.97
Interest Paid 43.27 -
Car Rental 3.00 1.00
Closing Balance 153.78 {15.53)
Prasham Shah Director Remunaration 7.20 -
Advance Paid 340 =
Closing Balance 2.50
Mahesh K. Shah Salary 24.00 9.00
Laan Repaid = 3:19
Closing Balance (17.00) (15.44)
Mamta M. Shah Loan Received 103,00 &0.328
Loan Repaid 103.00 60.38
Loan Giwven 23.69
Loan received Back - £3.69
Interest Paid 0.53
Salary 12,00 9.00
Closing Balance (1.28) (0.41)
Reshal Shah Salary =R .50
Closing Balance (0.48)
(0.50)
Quizal Shah Salary 12.00 12.00
Closing Balance (7.65)
(8.62)
Krushang Shah HUF Loan Reo@ived 2.00 -
Loan Repaid 2.00 =
Closing Balance = -
Giriraj Corparation Loan received Back 59,10 =
Inkerest Recelved 6,89 6.33
Closing Balance = 59.10
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Krushang Enterprises Loan Given 0,21
Loan received Back 0.23 10.21
Interest Recelvad 0,03 =
Closing Balance = 0.21
linalaya Infratech Private Limited | Deposit Received 2,500.00 -
Advances Recelved 1,B50.00 -
Purchase of Goods -
Interest Paid 46,40 56.56
Loan receivead 423,94 605,44
Loan repaid 721.61 1,072.31
Loan Given - BH.56
Loan received Back - 68.56
Closing Balanca {74.09) (326.35)
Depsaoit Balance (cl, (4,350.00) -
Balance)
MBPL-GCDL (JV) Sub Contract Receipt 680.24 3,248.34
Investment Made 24,41 14.38
Investment Withidrawn 65.62 -
Ehare of Profit (Loss) 3.49 34,90
Closing Balance 438.08 467.36
GCDL-SMBIPL (IV) Sub Contract Receipt 1,376.68 966,52
Investment Made 132.48 o4 7.80
Investmant Withdrawn 492,78 105.25
Qther Incomea 23.39 C
Share of Profit (Loss) 23.43 5.
Closing Balance 795.06 1,129.44
Dey Engineers Giriraj IV Investment Made - -
Share of Profit {Loss) .03
Closing Balance 1.95 1.83
Maoksha Construction Giriraj v Share of Profit (Loss) -
Investment Withdrawn 6.25 -
Cloging Balance = B6.25
Prima-Giriraj- KK 1V Shara of Profit {Loss) (8.43) 5. 74
Investment Made
Closing Balance 39.97 48.41
R.K, Madhani & Giriraj Civil v Share of Profit (Loss) 23.82 56.50
Closing Balance 214.03 190.22
Giriraj GSEPL Consutium Share of Profit (Loss) 0.25 =
Investment made 5919.90 =
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Investment Withdrawn 900,67 =
Other Income 38.73 -
Clesing Balance 58.20 -
Giriraj-KK IV Share of Profit (Loss) B.34 -
Investment Made
Closing Balance 8.34
Girira] Futurecon Private Limited Loan Given 0.01 -
Closing Balance 0.01 -

{ Jindicate credit balance

NOTE NO 42 Termination of Projects-

During the financial year, the Railway Department cancelled the following tenders

awarded to the Company-

1 "On 9th January 2025 - Cancellation of the tender for upgradation and beautification of five
stations: Marine Lines, Charni Road, Grant Road, Lower Parel, and Prabhadevi. The scheduled

work duration was 7 months.

2 On 30th December 2024 - Cancellation of the tender for upgradation and beautification of
Umbergaon, Sanjan, and Vapi stations. The scheduled work duration was 7 months.

"On 28" April 2025, the Railway department cancelled a tender for Provision of FOB, COP at

various stations between Isharwara-Aslana section, conversion of goods platform to passenger
platform (PF-No-4), Raising, Flooring PF No-1, raising widening & flooring of FF No. 2/3 & supply,
Fabrication, erection and launching of compaosite girder at important Bridge Mo-1066/1 between
Lidhora-Girwar station in connection with proposed 3rd line in Bina Katni Section, The nature of
the work was regarding the upgradation of stations and conversion of platforms for easy of
passengers and improving the efficiency of the platforms in terms of passenger handling, bullding
Fobs etc. The sakd work duration was of 12 manths.

All the above terminations have been classified by the Company as unlawful. Consequently, the
Company has initiated legal arbitration proceedings against the Rallway Department. As of
the reporting date, the pre-resolution and arbitration processes are ongoing.

Financial Disclosure:

As per the financlal records, the following amounts are associated with the above projects:
= Stock pertaining to the projects: 7 180,16 lakhs

Earnest Money Deposit (EMD): ¥ 26.69 lakhs
Bank Guarantee submitted: ¥ 285.89 lakhs

Based on management representation, there is no financial Impact recognized in the
current financial statements arising from the above terminations. The Company expects a
favourable resolution and therefore, no provisions or write-downs have been made in respect

of the stock, EMD, or bank guarantee as of the balance sheat data,

The Company continues to closely monitor the legal proceedings and will account far any

financial impact, if necessary, upon the conclusion of the arhitration.
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NOTE NO 43 CONTINGENT LIABLITES

Contingent liabilities not pravided for in the books of accounts as on 31st March 2025 amount
to ¥2,874.65 lakhs (Previcus Year: #2,B87.69 lakhs) towards bank guarantees issued Lo
various government authorities, Additionally, an amount of ¥155.97 lakhs [Previous Year:
#155.97 lakhs) pertains to disputed income tax liabilities for which the Company has filed an
appeal before the appropriate appellate authority. The Company has also filed an appeal
against GST liabilities amounting to ¥F1,940.87 lakhs towards interest and penalty, which are
currently under dispute.

Based on management assessment and legal advice, no provision has been made in the
financial statements as the Company expects a favourable outcome in all the above matters.
HOTE NO 44 REPORTING ON OTHERS DISCLOSURES:

Loan & advances, sundry debtors, sundry creditors and other liabilities are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation. The balances are therefore as per the books of accounts,

In the opinion of Directors, provisions for all known liabilities have been made in the accounts.
Mo commission has been paid to the directors and only the remuneration by way of salary has
been paid to the directors as per the section 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companles Act,
2013 as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs})

Particulars F.¥.2024 F.¥.2023-24
=25
Salaries 31.20 24.00
Contribution to Provident Fund == ik
 Total 31.20  24.00

. The Company does not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company far helding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with Companles whose name has been struck off
from the register of Companies,

The Cempany does not have any charges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with
registrar of companies (ROC).

. The Company has not traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the year.

. The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Act
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government autharity in current year and previous year.
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k.

Ratios Mumerator/Denominator | F.Y. F.Y. %% of Remarks

ML 2024-25 | 2023-24 | Variance

Current Current Assets / Current -

Ratio Liabilities 1. 2.03 1.98 2.2

Debt Equity | Total Debt / Shareholder's Ratio increased |

Ratio Equity due to Increase in
debt & increase In
Shareholder's

P : 0.13 0.09 49.33% | equity

Debt Service | Operating income / Total 5 N

Coverage debt service

Ratio 1.29 1.25 2920 |

Returm  on | Net Profit after Tax [ Increase In  Net

Equity Ratio | Average Shareholder's | Profit compare to

B equity 0.15 0.12 | 25.48% | Previous Year

Inventory Cost of Goods Sold [ Ratio increasod

Turnowver Average Inventory due to Increase in
| cost of goods sold
compare te
increase of

4.54 _2.80 62.33% | average inventory

Trade Annual Credit Sales f .

Receivables | Average Accounts Receivable

Turnover

Ratio = 5.91 5.30 11.60%

Trade Net Credit Purchase [ -

Fayabile Average Trade Pavable

Turnover

Ratio 542 6.71 =19.18%

Met Capital | Net sales / Average Warking

Turmower Capital

Ratio 3.87 318 | 21.76%

et Profit | Met Profit after Tax / Met 0.08 =

Ratio Sales 0.06 -19.27%

Return on | Earnings before Interest & 0.13 -

Capital Taxes / Capital Employed

Employed | 0.14 6.86%

The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks
and other parties. So far as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned,
the balance confirmation letters were sent to the parties. Balances of some of the Trade
Receivables, Cithir Agzaks, Trade and Other FPavables are subject  to
confirmations/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are
carrled out an on- geoing basis. However, management does not expect to have any
rmaterial financial impact of such pending confirmations reconclliations.

AUDIT TRAIL {EDIT LOG) FEATURE IN THE ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA) intreduced a new requirement for companies under the
proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies
{Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 requiring companles, which uses accounting software for
maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
of each and every transaction, creating an adit log of each change made In

recording audit L
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the books of account along with the date when such thanges were made and ensuring that thea
audit trail cannot be disabled.

Company using the audit trall in FY 2024-25,
m. Thera is no incorme surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous

Year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account,

n. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {Including right-of-
Use assels) or intangible assets or hoth during the current or previous year

a. There are certain charges which are historical in nature, and it involves practical
challenges in obtaining ne-objection certificates (NOCs) and/or getting requisite
formalities completed towards charge satisfaction from the charge holders of such
charges, despite repayment of the underlying leans, The Company is in the
continuous process of getting the charge satisfaction e-form filed and processed with
MCA, within the timelines, as and when it receives NOCs/confirmation from the
respective charge holders,”

2. Certain reclassifications and recasting have been made ta the comparative period’s
financial statements to enhance comparability with the eurrent year’'s financial statements. i
These reclassifications have no effect on the reparted results of o peratians.

e e 1 e e o B s o S o e T o I e O i e e o et W i o

As per Qur report of even date

ForRHA D & Co, For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant

(Firm Reg. Mo. 102588W) FBJ?_J__
ATY . -..‘_'_._._...-—"-
H@

Dinesh Bangar

Krushang Shah Prasham Shah

Partner Managing Director Executive Director
M.No. 036247 DIN: D7198525 DIN: 09540340
. Bt
__:-IMJ Fhaw ol
2! Mumbai Shashikant. J. Rathod © enwedary
| 29 May 202 Chief Financial Officer Cliide i

Hu]ﬂluﬂrﬂmuﬂwﬂ”%




(A RHAD & CO.

INDIA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office:- 304, Sohan Commercial Plaza, Near Railway Station, Vasai Road (East), Dist. Palghar 401208
Tel: 9326675367 / 9561876128
Email:-dineshbv12@gmail.com,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GIRIRA] CIVIL DEVELOPERS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GIRIRAJ CIVIL DEVELOPERS
LIMITED (“the Company”), its jointly controlled entities (collectively hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Group’) compromising of the the consolidated Balance sheet as on 31+ March 2025, Statement of Profit
and Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘the consolidated
financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the group as at 31st March, 2025, its profit and its consolidated cash
flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.



Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,

Financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibility for the audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of non-detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our Auditors’ Report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion is based
on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our Auditors’ Report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statement,
including the disclosure and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underline transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statement of such entities include in the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decision of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factor in (I) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work, and (I1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards,

Other Matter(s)

1. The Annual Financial results include the results for the half year and year ended 31t March,
2025 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
and the published unaudited year to date figures up to the half year of the current financial year
which were subject to limited review by us.

2. The accompanying Statement includes the audited financial results/statements and other financial
information, in respect of Other Joint Venture Companies, Firms includes Giriraj - KK , Prime
Giriraj-KK, Dev Engineers, R. K. Madani , MBPL -GCDL (unaudited) and GCDL- SMBIPL and
Giriraj GSESPL Consortium (Audited by other Independent Auditor) , whose financial
results/statements include Total Assets of Rs. 1325.33 Lakh, as at March 31, 2025 and total revenues
of Rs. 1936.70 lakhs for the Year ended March 31, 2025. These financial statements and other
financial information for these jointly controlled entities have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these jointly controlled entities and our
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable, is based
solely on such financial statements and other financial information as certified by the
management.



Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements above, is not qualified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the financial statements and other financial

information certified by the management.

Report on other Legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the accounting standard
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as  a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A",
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year Isin
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated
Financial Statements

ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person{s) or entlty(ies), including foreign entities {(*Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uitimate Beneficlaries;

Ny



biThe management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed In the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s}
or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate In the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statemeant.

d)The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year in contravention of the section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013

i) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software(s) for
raintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies { Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

For RHAD & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No; 102588W

_Lo [/ yumes
Dinesh C. Bangar, 'I Jio ]
(Partner)
M.No.:- 036247

Place: - Mumbai
Date: - 29/05/2025
UDIN: -25036247BMLWWR7160



Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report Referred to in paragraph
19(g) of the Independent

Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Giriraj Civil Developers Limited on the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025

REPORT OM THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE ACT

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Giriraj Civil
Developers Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent Company”) as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company which includes the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent Company’s and its 7 Joint
Ventures Firm and Companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies, to
whom reporting under clause (i} of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of
the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies,
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAl Those
Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Parent
Company's internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial
statements

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
desighed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accaunﬁn_g_principles, A company’s internal financial control with



reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

CPINION

8. In our opinion, the Parent Company and its 7 Joint Ventures companies and Firm,
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

O Al
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9. OTHER MATTERS
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(l) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to 7 Joint Ventures companies
and Firm, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of the branches and of such subsidiary companies incorporated
in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For RHAD and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NuthﬁlﬂESEBW

{};ﬂ f \1\ L"' r .-.

— f" *-.'-
Dinesh E Bangarq
Partner

M. NO.036247

Place: Mumbai
Date:pg 05.2025
UDIN:25026247BMLUWWRT 160
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SQNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 ( Rs.In Lakhs)
LA Mote As an As on
no. !lﬂl-‘!!il.___ﬂm&qu_

Share capgital 3 2,392 .05 4,302 05
Reserves B Suiplus 4 16, 720,76 B,932 52
13,112,81 11,%24.57
2] MEEEELMEEE :
Man-turrant Liabilitias 5 191,90 167,13
Other non-current Liabiitas [ 6,149 16 254 58
Dwefarred bax Liabilities 7 0.7 20,95
6,371.85 442,80
3]
Short- term borrawing ] 2,453,140 o9& £ 2
Trade payabla g
“Total Qutstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprisas 301.13 -
Total Dutstanding Dues of LCreditors Other han of
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 4.787.34 3,912.54
Gther current Liabilities 10 3,238.97 1,051.82
Short-term proviskons i1 5B.54 113,68
10,925,009 8,076.16
30,413.75 17, 843.54
ASSETS
1] NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Eguipment and Intangible assels
Property, Plant and Equigmmsent 12 1,205.73 o977
Intangible asspts 12 4.52 4,27
Hon current investmants i3 0.02 .07
Lang-term loan B advances 14 5,630,099 3,761.35%
Qther non-current assels 15 2,011.58 1,2%2.58
8,852,858 5,948.03
2] CURRENT ASSETS
[nventories 16 7,002 0k 9, 28512
Trade raceivahle 17 6,.806.01 3,683.68
Cash B cash aquivalents 18 1,415.21 70626
Shart barm boans B advances 15 Qo982 430.41
OHer current assets 20 5,536, 9 219712
21,560.90 11,805,514

Eﬁ!IISIZE 17,843.54

Corporate Information's and significant accoy nting policies 1 & 2
Accompanying notes forming part of the financlal statements

AS per Report af aven date
FORRHAD &co,

[Firm Reg.no.102588W)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Gy

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

. Krushang Shal Prasham Shak
(DInEsy BANGAR Managing Directar Exacutive Direckor
PARTMER DIN:O7198525 DIN:09530340

Mem.No, 036247
Plice : Mumbal
Bated | 39/08/2025
250 360w AME

Shnlﬁ n Jmthqq,ﬁg_llf]mgana&

= '_{ @ Chéefl Financial Cfficer Cme"'W [ g tl'l?!j M




Note  YearEnded Year Ended
Mo, j 25 31 20
ANCOME
Revenue from operation {Gross) 21 37,022,586 20,270,590
Less: GST on Salas 559265 2,837.96
Revenue from operation [MNet) 31,429.90 17,432,594
Cther Income 22 41848 165.58
_31,848.38 17,598.52
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Raw material consumed Jtradied 23 24.73%9.83 11,735,098
tIncrease} / Decrease In inventories 14 (2.504.63) {287.79)
Direct Expenses 25 3,278 M 3,459,222
Employee benefit Expenses il BE5H,56 G34.71
Others Expenses az 323.83 315.08
28,805.85 15,857.20
(Profit Befora Interast, Depreciation ,Taxation 2,952.53 1,741.32
& Extraordinary Items
Intorest & Finangial Cost 28 344 50 286,95
Depreciation 12 145 .41 112.49
Profit Befare Taxation 2,462.54 1,341.88
Less : Pravision for
Income Tax 639,05 2512
Ceferred Tax {Assets) 9.81 7.51
Less{Add): Adjustment of taxation of B, Y. 25 44 {3.04)]
Profit After Taxation 1,788.24 1,012.29
| Balance Carried to Balance Sheet a8 01
Earning per equity share
Basic 7.48 4.23
Cilubed 7.48 4,23
Welghted average 7.48 B.30
Carporate information's and  significant acesunting policies
Accomganying notes farming part of the financial statermants 2
As per Report of even date
FORRHAD & CO, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
~ |(Firm Reg.no.102588wW)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ﬁH"____ ,ﬁ.
= Krushang Shah Prasham Shah
(DINESH BANGAR) Managing Director Executive Director
PARTNER DIN:07198525 DN 9540340
Mem.No.036247 e, il B
Place © Murmbai j%%}dﬁ"
Dated : 29/05/2025 Shashikant J Rathod ﬁ'&i Pamuwsa
EE:EE 15elL 1N ﬂ : Chief Financial Officar mmpﬂw Eﬁ.ﬂ'ﬁﬂ:
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Giriraj Civil Developers Limited

MET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES { C)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

e CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

=IRIRA.
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 Rs,In Lakhs
Sr. SR e e 'gerJ‘
A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit available for appropriation after tax 1,788.24 101229
Adfustrront for;
Cerpreciation 145 .41 112 .49
Prowision for Tax G38.05 325,12
Pravision for Deferred Tax 281 7.51
Adpustment of Previous year Tax 25.44 (3.0}
Interest & Finance Charges Pald 344,59 206.95
Inlerest Income Recetvad 355,57 [154.54!
Adjustment for change in Working Capital
Invimtories (2, 714.84) (G56.19)
Trade and other Recajvabdos [2,922.40) (2,062.26}
Loan & Advances and Other Current Assets [6,112.95) (4,037,25)
Trade Liabdlities & Provislans D.292.42 1,514.55
CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES < — (3.666.47)
Less:- Taxes Paid (Net of refunds and interest on refunds) 619,39 280.77
NET CASH FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES (%] == m : m E i
B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of fixed assobs [391.62) (213.53)
Sale of fixed assets - .
Salef{Purchate) of Investments 0,05 .
Interest [noome received 155 57 164.64
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B} =T 1
C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares - 4. 294940
Proceeds from Short term Borrowing 1,349.41 (307.76)
Preceads (rom Term Loan Z4.95 174,92
Procesds from Unsecuired Borrowing 45.39 {B49.19)
[ssue Expensas paid . {20.85)
Interest & Finance Charges paid {344.59] (2B6.9%5)

M per Report of even date
FORR WA D & co.

{IFirm Reg.no.102588W)
|CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Bl

E’IHESH BANGAR)

"ARTHNER
MNo.036247

98 | Mumbal

n"]'?ﬂ. 29/05/2025
N 2% 1h2010m Lt 7o

706,26 1,742.82
141521 FOE.26
FOR Mﬂﬂ/&ﬁlj’_ﬂf OF THE BOARD
Krushang Shah rasham Shah

Exegibive Director
DM ; 9540340

Yoo

Managing Directar
DIN: 0¥ 198525

T 2|l
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES FORMING PARTS OF CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2025

1] GROUP INFORMATION

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Giriraj Civil Developers Limited
{The Company or Holding Company) and its Joint ventures (collectively referred to as "the Group")
for the year ended 31% March 2025.The Holding company is a public limited company domiciled in India,
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, as Giriraj Civil Developers Limited. The company's equity
shares are listed on the Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) under the SME segment.

The registered office of the holding company is located at:
Office No. 2nd Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali {West),
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India - 400092.

Since its inception, the company has been primarily engaged in the business of civil construction. It has
executed a wide range of contract works for various government bodies, semi-government organizations,
corporations, and private entities. The company operates across multiple Indian states, including
Maharashtra, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, and Madhya Pradesh, among others.

The presentation and functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial
statements are presented in Lakhs, by rounding off up to two decimals except for per share data and
as otherwise stated,

The Consolidated financial staterments are approved for issue by the Holding Company’'s Board of
Directors in their meeting held on 29 May, 2025,

2] SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

A, BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

i}  These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified by the Central Government in exercise of the
power conferred under sub-section (1) {(a) of section 642 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act”).

i) The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention on accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company unless
otherwise stated.

i) All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013. Based on
the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

B. Basis of Consolidation

a) The Consclidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at 31
March 2025, Centrol is achieved when the Group has;

. Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

b) Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policles for like
transactions angestsgvents in similar circumstances. If a sypSiEr
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policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial
staterments in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting policies

c) The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

d) Consolidated procedure far:

i) Jeint arrangement

Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Holding Company has both joint operations and joint
ventures.

. Joint operations: Group recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of joint operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses. These have been incorporated in the standalone financial statements under the
appropriate headings.

[ Joint ventures: Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method after
initially being recognised at cost in the Consolidated statement of financial position.

g} Eguity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. If the investee
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profit equals the share of losses not recognised.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy of impalrment.

USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period, Difference between the actual results and estimate are
recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

REVENUE RECOGNITION:

The Company operates in construction industry and it earns revenue primarily from the Engineering,
Procurement and Construction ("EPC') business. The contracts with the customers are of construction of
railways, construction of roads & highways, construction of commercial and residential buildings,
electrification work and others.

The company provides these construction services on a fixed-sum turnkey basis as well as on cost plus
basis,

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services ("performance
obligation”) are transferred to the custormer at an amount that reflects the consideration te which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (“transaction price”).

i) Revenue is recognized using the percentage of completion method (as per Accounting Standard 7), based
oh contractee appraisal. For residential and commercial building contracts, revenue recognition is deferred
until the 20% completion milestone is reached, allowing for the issuance of the 1st Running Account (RA)
bill.
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it} Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon passing of title to the customers, which generally
coincides with their delivery.
iii) Revenue from services is recognised upon rendering of services and billed to the customers.

iv) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount ocutstanding and
the applicable interest rate,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land) held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Freehold
land is not depreciated. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of assets
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use,

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on Property, Plant
and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method over their estimated useful life, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc, Losses arising from the retirement of, and
gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interast in a joint operation, its share in the
assets/liabilities held/ incurred jointly with the other parties of the joint arrangement. Revenue is recagnised
for its share of revenue from the sale of output by the joint operation. Expenses are recognised for its share
of expenses incurred jointly with other parties as part of the joint arrangement.

& jointly controlled operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a Company undertakes its activities under jointly controlled operations, the Company as a joint
operator recognises in relation to its interest in a jointly controlled operation the assets, liabilities, revenues,
and expenses relating to its interest in a jointly controlled operation in accordance with the applicable Ind
AS,

When a Company transacts with a jointly controlled operation in which a Company is a joint operator (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), the Company is considered to be conducting the transaction with the
other parties to the jointly controlled operation, and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the Company'’s financial statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the jointly
cantrolled operation.

When a Company transacts with a jointly controlled operation in which a Company is a joint operator (such
as a purchase of assets), the Company does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it resells
those assets to a third party

TRADE RECEIVABLES:

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is uncenditional {i.e., only
the passage of time is reguired before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components.
The Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and

effe-::twe interest rate method less
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES:
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a

contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier),
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

AND IVA T

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are
readily canvertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

DEPRECIATION:

i} Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the straight-line Method.
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013

i) Depreciation in respect of addition to the fixed assets is provided on Pro-rata basis in which such assets
are acquired / installed.

iii} In case of assets costing less than Rs.5000/- deprecation@ 100% is provided,
INVENTORIES:
Inventory of raw material are values at cost adopting FIFO Basis.

Work in progress is valued at actual raw material cost and overheads. Construction costs incurred for future
contract activities are recognised as assets if it is probable that they will be recovered during the contract
period and classified as construction work-in progress under inventories,

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

At each balance sheet date, the company review whether there is any indication of impairment of the
carrying amount of the company's fixed assets. If any indication exits, an asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairmeant loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable
amount and charged to profit & loss account in the year in which assets is identified as impaired. The
recoverable is greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimate future
cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. The impairment
loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been changed in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENFEFIT:

Short term benefit payable to employees wholly within twelve months of rendering services such as salaries,
wages etc. are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plan: The Company’s contribution to the state governed employees provident fund
scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recognized during
the period in which the employee renders the related service,

Defined Benefit Plan: The Company's employee’s gratuity is accounted on accrual basis based on actuarial
valuation.

TAX ON INCOME:

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of
the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amuunt expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accmrdanc& wtth the taxation laws prevailing in the nschctmns
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Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there
is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date,
the company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSE OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT):

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

Short term borrowings, repayments and advances having maturity of three months or less, are shown as net
in cash flow statement.

PROVISION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecenomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the present cbligation at the Balance sheet date and are not
discounted to its present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed anly by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

EARNING PER SHARES:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the
purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Notes to accounts forming part of Consolidated Balance sheet as on 31st March 2025

WOTE-3, SHARE CAPTTAL [ Bs.En Lakhs) |

Particulars As om 31/03,/3035 As on 31/03/3024
Amount [Rs.) Ansoait (s et [ Fa | Asrstiant (B, )

SHARE CAPITAL

ALTHOEESER

3,00, 00,000 [ P¥.250,00,000] Equiky shanes of e, 10/- sach 300000 ;609000
000040 A 800,00

1S5UED, SPSGCRIBED & PAID (P

35, M1.500 | PUY.2,59,20,500) Eguity shares of Rs. 1407 230305 138305

wach, hdly paid wp

39,
A% oon 3170372025 dusooen 300372004
Partsculars
Mo of shares Amaant Mo of sharas Asmaant
AL Ehee Begmnimg of e period 1,520, 500 1, 392.0% 4. 044,100 &{14,41
Isseimd ouring the parca - - 19,0 e a00 (= ERT ]
Dutetanding &t the =nd of the period 33,5950, 500 2. 303 .05 23,030, 50 m

b} Terms) rights attached to equity shares
1.Trea Company Rl ondy ofe clcs of sharas refernsd b % aquity shares having a par walue of Fs. 10/ Each hokder ol equety shares s entitled b o waie
por share.

2.Tha companny deciangs and pays Gvldands in [tdan opess, The dyvidend propeaed by the Bosrd of Directors (s subject o the epproval of the
shareholders in the ensaing Annusal Genersl Meeting.

E.Tre Comdany Nag only ored chass of sharns refernsd 0o &5 eguty shares niving o par velue of Bs 1 -.Each fiokder of aquaty shares is enteled to one woka
e g hare,

4, The Company hes sllotted squity Mil (FY 740,000} equity shares of RS, 100 aact af thi premiom of OF W& (FY. fs 5715 Per sham) oo preferanbal
basis im PY 20033-24,

5 The tompany bes dllstted bonus squity shares in Prewious Year tobel 1,91,36,400 equity shares of As. 100 gach, four Equity shares allotad for avary ong
axisting eguly share hold on cleaing dale of 0311732023

c} Detalls of sharaholdars hakding mieo than 5% shares of the company

B i of i 10 Pl siodd As on 317033028 Ax on 31/03/2024

o Mo ol ghanes W of Andding Mo of shares % of holding
Krushang & Shaky BSea, S00 XY Sy 9,520, 500 I7 LB
Tonugs Ageerwal & 000,000 15, 73% o, (400, (3D 16, 7 2%
Blabasli K. 5hat HUF 1,513,000 =51% 1,315, 040 510
Wisdom Packaging Pwi.LEd, 1,647, DM [N [ 1, 647, 000 [N

Aim per the records of the company, ecluging =5 regster of e shanehoidems’ Memhais and ether feclarationg recsivil fem Ha shaneholoeis ragardiiig
Bgrsplicial interesr, sl alxned shamsholding represent both egal and Geneficial owresrships of shares

€] Shares r
As on 31003 E025 a5 om 317000034
Equity share of Rs 10/ -sach fully paid
Mo af shares B af halding Mo of sharas & af holding

Krushang M Sfah & 0540, 500 37,580, BAG0, 500 13 Bijiy
Mahesh K.Shah HUF 1,319,000 5,515 L A3 000 5.51%
Mahesh K, Shan MM, Xl 1.76% 00,000 3, 755
Mamta M.Shat Q53,200 4,025 Sh2, 000 4,02%
Reshal Shah 51 00k (.21% LRI k219,
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MOTE-4, RESERVE & SURPLUS { Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.} Amount (Rs.)
GENERAL RESERVE
Balance as perlast finandial statements 411,00 361.00
Add: Amount transferred from Serplus 100,00 511.00 50,00 411.00
CAPITAL RESERVE
galance as per last financial statements 191,70 191.70
SECURITY PREMIUM
Balance as per last financial staterments 4,691.01 2,400,009
Add: Additional during the year x 4,225.40
Less; Utilised for Issued of bonus Shares - 1,913.64
Less: Share issued Expenses = 4, 691,01 20.85 4,691,001
Retained Earnings
SURPLUS IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
Balance as per fast financial staterments 3,638.82 2676453
Add: Profit for the year 1,788.24 1,012.29
Less: Transferred to General Reserve 1040, 03 5,327.06 50.00 3.638.82
mi?zn.?n Bi93 2.52
(i} MNature and Purpose of Other Resarves:

(a) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings rapresents the undistributed profits of the Company,

(b} General Reserve
General Reserve represants the statutory reserves, this is in accordance with Corporate Law wherein a portion of profit is appertioned to General Reserve.
Under Companies Act, 2003, the transfer of any amount to General Reserve |s at the discretion of the Company.

{c ) Capital Reserve
The Capital Reserve represents the total ameount of profic on farfeited shares and loan settlement income,

{d} Securities Premium raserve

Secuyrites Ppremium s used to record the premium on issue of shares, Its is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act, 2013,

MOTE-5,NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES { Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31/03 /2025 As on 2170372024
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.)

Secured Loan
Long term Borrowing
F Bank / Fi il Insti

M & M Financial Services Lkd 7021 117.61

State Bank of Indla 19.26 26.71

Yes Bank Ltd 14,41 6.55

Kogta Finance (India} Limited 42.47 146.34 - 150.87
Tarm Loan Term & Conditions

1. Secured term loan from M B & Financial Service Ltd, repayable in 36 Monthly Installments, carry rate of Interest 13,75% P.A,
2. Secured Business term loan from State Bank of India, repavable in &0 Monthly [nstallments, carry rate of Interest 9.25% P&,

3. Secured Business term loan from Yes Bank Ltd, repayable in 50 Monthly Instaliments, carry rate of [nterest 13.50% P.A. During the year company
availed loan another toan of Rs 11.80 Lacs from Yes Bank.
4, Secured Business term loan from Kogta Finance {India} Ltd, repayabie in 48 Monthly Installments, carry rate of Interest 13.03% P.A,

Unsecured Loan
i i I Insti
Ambit Finvest Private Limited #2.50 16.27

Unity Small Finance Bank Limited 23.06 45.56 = 16.27

191.90 —_era3

Term Loan Term. & Corditions
1, Unsecured business Loan from  Ambit Finvest Private Limited, repayabla in 24 Monthly Installments, carry rate of [nterest 20% P A,

nts; carcy rate of Interest 20% PLA,
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NOTE-6,0THER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 31/03/2025

As on 31/03/2024

Retention /secunty Deposit Payable
Advance against Tender Depaosit
Deposits from Related Party

[Refer Note Mo 29)

Earnest Monay Deposit from Third Party
[Refer Note Mo 30)

Gratuity payabie

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
A82.00
136,51
2,500.00

3,023.00

7.65 G,149.16

Deposits from Related Party
Jinalaya Infratech Private Limited

NOTE-7,DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES(NET)

_ 2,300.00

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}

107,76
14086

G.06B 254.68

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

As on 31/03/2025

Particulars

Difference in depreciation on fixed assels as

Amount {Rs.} Amount (Rs.)

As on 31/03/2024

Amount [Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

per Tax books and financial books 33 47 3227

Timing difference [1.68) 30.79 {1.28) 20.99

NOTE-8,SHORT TERM BORROWING { Rs.In Lalr.hs|
Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024

SECURED LOANS :

[(WORKING CAPITAL LIMITS)
a) Cash Credit Limit from Yes Bank

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

(Working Capltal Limits from Yes Bank are secured by hypothecation on
entirg current assets both present & future | equitable mortgage of office
premises and residential properties of divector, and Turther parsonal
guargntes of bwo directors of the cormpany, limits are repayable an

demand -Mobe No 31)

b) Overdraft Loan- Yes Bank Limited

Cash credil facility from bank carries an average interest rate 9,055, aan

The loan is secured by Fleed Deposits of the Company,

b) Working Capital loan from NBFC
Fintrea Finance Private Limited

The Company has availed an unsacured working capstal loan from Fintres
Finanoce Private Limited, backed by the personal guaraotee of Director #r,
Pragham Shah and a pledge of his persanal sharehakding. The loan carries

an inberest rabe of 18% per annum.,
£l Current Maturities of Long term
Borrowing
_From Bank / Financial Institutes-
Kogta Finange (Imdia) Limited
M & M Financial Services Ltd
State Bank of India
Yes Bank Ltd

UNSECURED LOANS :
a) From MBFC/Financial Institutes
Ambit Finwvest Private Limited

Unity Smali Finance Bank Limited

b) Related parties

Krushang M Shah
Mahesh K.Shah
Mamta Shah

Jinalaya Infratech Private Lirmited

gl Intercorporate Deposits
Corporate Bodies
Other Parties

574.72

B05,59

409,63
17.00
85,38
7.50

3.65 113,53
23.29

23.29 46,57
151.00
171.54

74.09 396.63

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
240.53
17.07
5.46
1.53 24,06
24.47
24.47
.06
158,68
326.35 485.09

223.97

998.12

s ]
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NOTE-2,TRADE PAYABLE [ Re.In Lakhs})
Parkiciilars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount [(Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount [(Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
TRADE PAYABLE
Trade payable against goods and services
To Related Partles - =
To Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 39113 =
To Other than Micra, Small & Medium
Enterprises 4,787.34 5,178.47 3,912.54 3,912.54
MNotes:
aiDisclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 / Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) are provided in Note 32,
Trade payable ageing Schedule Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
; Less than More than 3
Particulars L Var 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Yiars Total
i) MSME 391.13 = = - 391.13
il} Others 4,026.98 17.20 51.89 691.27 4, 787.34
(2,902.56) (122.35) (1212 [875.51} 13,912.54)
ili) Disputed Due-MSME - - - - -
i) Disputed Due-Others - - - -
Total:- d,418.11 17.20 51.89 691,27 5,178.47
{2,902.56) (122.35) {(12.12) [B75.51) (3,912.54
MNabe: Previaus year figure shiown in [ )
MNOTE-10,0THER CURRENT LIABILITIES ( Rs.In Lakhs
Sk ieidare As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/0372024
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Statutory dues pavable 712,50 G44.03
Retention fsecurity Deposit Payable n.g2 306.14
Advance from Related Party 1,B850.00
(Mote Mo 33)
Advance from Debtors 585.53 5
Dutstanding salary & aspenses
To Riezlated Parties 20.02 38,10
To Other Parties 0,10 3,238.97 63.55
Advance from Related party
Erom Related Parties
Il v, At 1,850.00
Outstanding salary & expenses
Io Related Parties
Mahesh K Shah 17.04 15,45
Krushang Shah 3.02 15.53
Quizal Shah 6.63
Riesal Shah 20,02 .44 38.10
NOTE-11,5HORT TERM PROVISION { Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
SHORT TERM PROVISION
Prowvision for Expenses Payable 58.54 g2.61
Provision for Income tax 21.07
58.54 113.68
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NOTE-12, TANGIBLE ASSETS
[Separate Statement attached)

NOTE-13,NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

1,210.26

{ BR5.In Lakhs)

964.04

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 31/03/2025

Ason 31/03/2024

Amount (Rs.) Amount [(Rs.)

UNQUOTEDR-Equity Instruments (valued at cost}
500 Equity shares of Fulars Solar Led,of Rs.10/-each

fuily paid up.

UNQUOTED-Equity Instrumeants (valued at cost) 0.018

160 Equity shares of Abhyudaya Co-Op Bank Ltd.of Rs. 10/-each

fully paid up.

NOTE-14, LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

0.016

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

Particulars

{Unsecured, considerad good )
Tender Deposits

Ason 31/03/2025

Amount (Rs.} Amount {Rs.)

As on 31/03/2024

Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.)

Government Tender deposits 621.72 260,22
Other Tender Deposits (Refer Note No 35) 3.161.05 1,496.00
Sacurity Ceposits 97,16 50.19
Fixed Deposit with Bank 1,751.06 1,954,904
{Towards Bank Gaurantee and EMD for
Tenders -Fixed Deposits with original maturity
of more than 12 months) 5.630.99 3,761.35
=t e Rt
MOTE-15, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS { Rs.In Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
{Unsecured, considerad good )
Retention Monay
Gowvernment Dept. Retention Money 1,671.64 BE2.63
Balance with Government Authorities
TDS & [ncome Tax {Income Tax Payments less
Prowvisian) 211.15 2EL.ET
GET ReceivablefGST paid under Protest 128,80 339,495 114.68 339.95
3:011.53 1!12 2.58
NOTE-16, INVENTORIES { Rs.In Lakhs)
=) - As on 31/03,/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount {Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Material F01.84 491 .64
Waork in Progress 5,301.12 3,796.49

7,002.96

4,288.121
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NOTE-17, TRADE RECEIVABLE

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 3170372025

As on 31/03/2024

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount [Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Unsecurad considerad good, G, 60601 3,683.41
EEEDE.B:I. 35583,61
Trade Receivable ageing Schedula Receivable for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & Months- More than 3 Total
Particulars 5 Months i Vs 1-2 Years| 2-3 Years Years
i} Undisputed Trade receivables-considered 6,062.72 269,25 = T 274,04 6,006, 01
Jaiaeli] (3,408.33) [1.24] [2.67) [271.37) (3,683.61)
i) Undisputed Trade receivabiles-considered - - - - - -
droubtful = = = = .
iy Disputed Trade receivables-considerad - -
good
iw) Disputed Due-Others Z
Total:- 5,062.72 259.25 2 " 274.04 6,606.01
(3,408.33) {1.24) - (2.67) (271.27) (3,683.61)
Mot Previous vear figure shown in { )
NOTE-18, CASH AND CASH & EQUIVALENTS { Rs.In Lail:hsl
Particulars As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,)
Cash an hand 27.25 6.13
Balance with banks
in Current accounts 183.52 495,43
in Fixed Deposit {Margin Maney) 1,204.44 1,387.96 200,70 790,13
(- Deposits with Griginal Maturlty of Less Than 3 Months)
1,415.21 796.26

MOTE-19, SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

[ Bs.In Lakhs}

As on 3170372025

Particulars
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVAMCES
{Unsecured, considerad good )
Sundry Loan and Advances

To Related Parties (*} 2,21

To Others 047,61 999.82
To Related Parlies
Girraj Corporation -
Krushang Shah 2.20
Giriraj Futurecan Private Limibed 0.01 2.11

NOTE-20, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As on 31/03/2024

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
59,10

B71.31 930,41
59.10

589.10

{ Rs.In Lakhs)

As on 3170372025

Particulars
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured, considered good )
Advance recaverable in cash or kind for value
o be recaivied 68642
Prepaid Expenses B.88
Security Deposit S0.00
Fixed Deposit in Bank 445.44
{Depasits against Bank Gaurantes with
Criginal Maturity of More Than 3 Manths but
Less Tham 12 Monkhs- )
Tender Deposits 158.65
Retention Money 334.09
GST Credit / Refundable dq41,12
Deposit - Project Exploration (Mobe No 36) 3,332.32 5,536.90

Ason 31/03/2024

Amount (Rs.)

90B.33
16,74
312

516.78
Fa.ov
37308

Amount [(Rs.)

2:19?.12
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MNOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T
MARCH, 2025

-21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS { Rs.In s

Sale of Services

Contract Receipt 36,894,33 20,143.76
Less: GST an Contract receipt 5,573.09 31,321.24 2.813.05 17,330.71
Sale of Products
Traded Goods 128.23 127.14
Less: GST on traded goads 19,56 108.67 24 .91 102.23
31,429.90 17,432.94

NOTE-22, OTHER INCOMES — : Rs.In Lakhs)

Inkerest Receivad 355.57 164.64
Share of Profit{Loss) of loint Venture - -
ther [ncame. 4.57 0.94
Rent Income 58.33

418.48 165.58

NOTE-23, COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED/TRADED

Inventories at the Beginning of the Year 491.64 117.50
add ¢ Purchase of Goods 11,344.46 7,399.21
Add 1 Sub Contract Payment 13,005,548 4,710.90
25,441.67 12,227.61
Less: Inventories at the Ernd of the Year 701.84 491,64
24,739.83 11,735.98

NOTE-24, (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES { Bs.In Lakhs)

Work in progress
Inventories at the end of the year 6,301.12 3,796.49
Less: Inventarias at the haginning of the year 3, 796,49 3,504.70

(2,504.63) {287.79)
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MOTE-25,DIRECT EXPENSES [ Rs.In l.akhn}

Labour Contract Payments 2871.12 2,287.22
Equipment Hire Charges 599,88 420.53
Power & Fuel Charges 492,70 512.98
Toll Tax & Boarder Crossing Fee 12,68 26.68
Factary Rent Rate and Taxes 54.87 45,44
Consuting fee for Desiging, Approval and Praduction 1,102.85 114.02
Lab Testing Charges 33.93 15.26
Repair & Maitenance-Plant & Machineries 10,24 33.09

5,278.26 3,459.22

NOTE-26,EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES = ; __{ Rs.In Lakhs

Salary to Office Staff TE1.14 597.86
Pravidend Fund & ESI Contributian 3,08 371
Gratuity 1.59 2.04
Staff Welfare & Medical Exp. 132.75 31.09

B58.56 634.71

MOTE-27,0THER EXPENSES

Traveling, Conveyance, Lodging & Boarding 153,25 87.13
Telephane & Internet Charges 1.45 1,58
Prafessional & Legal Expenses 80.07 5a.51
Rent Paid 46,64 40.45
Printing & Stationery 3.66 6.73
Electricity Charges 4.08 4.80
Business Promotion 5.96 7.57
Insurance Premium 19.86 7.89
Repair & Maintenance 7.91 11.55
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 10.45 7.33
Security Charges 69.57 41.03
Donaticn (CSR Exp) 16.52 6,75
[Moke Mo 36)

Payment ta Statutory Auditors (net of goods and service
tax input credit, where applicable)
-as auditors (for audit of financial statements and lmited

reviews) 5.00 1.00
- for tax audit &
= for certification work 0.35 0.40
Internal Auditer Fees -
Other Exp 18.66
Miscellaneous Expenses 79.39 29.36
523.83 315.08

MOTE-28, INTEREST & FINANMCIAL COST

INTEREST & FINANCIAL COST

Interest to Bank & Others 241.06 167.04
Financial Charges 103.53 119.89
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NOTE NO 29 DEPOSIT -PROJECT EXPLORATION

The Parent Company has received a security deposit of ¥ 2500 Lakhs (total agreed: F4000
Lakhs) from a related party in connection with the proposed subcontracting of a construction
contract currently being executed by the Parent Company. Upon receipt of the full deposit, the
Parent Company will formally assign or subcontract the remaining scope of work under the
existing contract to the related party.

The amount received is classified under Non-Current Liabilities as “Deposit from Related
Party", as the arrangement involves performance obligations extending beyond 12 months.

NOTE NO 30 DEPOSIT - FROM THIRD PARTIES

The Parent Company has received a security deposit of ¥ 3023.00 Lacs (Total agreed: #5000
Lakhs) from a third party against the future allocation of flats/constructed area, which the
Parent Company will receive as part consideration under an ongoing construction contract.

If the Parent Company does not receive the total agreed amount, the funds received may either
be refunded or forfeited, based on mutual understanding.

Upon receipt of the full deposit, the Parent Company will execute the relevant agreements, and
the designated area will be transferred to the third party. The amount received is classified
under Non-Current Liabilities as “"Deposit from Third Party”, pending completion of the
project and execution of the formal agreement.

NOTE NO 31 WORKING CAPITAL AND BANK GUARANTEE FACILITY

During the year, the Group enhanced its working capital facility from #300 Lakhs to #600 Lakhs
and its non-fund-based limit (bank guarantees) from ¥ 2812 Lakhs to 24612 Lakhs with Yes
Bank Limited. These facilities are secured by the Group’s current assets, investments, cash
flows, residential property of directors, personal guarantees of directors, and commercial assets
of a sister concern firm,

The non-fund-based limit is utilized primarily for issuing bank guarantees to government
departments, either directly, through third parties, or on behalf of joint wventures. These
guarantees are further secured by fixed deposits and the above-mentioned collateral.

As on 31st March 2025, the outstanding bank guarantees amount to ¥ 3898.59 Lakhs (Previous
Year: ¥ 3199.69 Lakhs). The guarantees are primarily performance and security-related in
nature. Based on management assessment, no material liability is expected to arise. Hence, no
provision has been made in the financial statements.

Note No 32 - Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosures required under section 22 of the micros, small and medium enterprises development
Act 2006

The Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as
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Rs in Lacs)
Particulars As at -1
31st March, 31st March,
2025 2024

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplien 391,12 ' :
at the end of the year
Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 3
Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year*

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - "
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the & ST
end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and = ®
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006"” is based on the information available with the Group regarding the
status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from
them on requests made by the Group. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest
payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date except Rs.
47.44 Lacs (company did not made provision for the interest on overdue amount).

NOTE NO 33 ADVANCE FROM RELATED PARTY

The Parent Company has received an advance of 1850.00 Lacs from a related party for
conducting a market search and identifying potential project opportunities. The search aims to
explore potential ventures for joint development. The amount is classified under Other Current
Liabilities as "Advance from Related Party ",

NOTE NO 34 GROUP INFORMATION

Jointly Controlled Operations-Share of Parent Company- The Parent Company along with
the Joint operators enters into contracts with the customers for execution of the projects. The
Parent Company as a Joint operator, recognizes assets, liabilities, income and expenditure
held/incurred jointly with other partners in proportion to its interest in such joint arrangements
in compliance with applicable accounting standards taking into account the related rights and
obligations applicable in the respective jointly controlled operations. The operations of the jointly
controlled operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements basis the
audited/unaudited annual accounts of the jointly controlled operations, on line-by-line basis with
similar items in the Parent Company's accounts in proportion to its effective ownership interest
in such Joint Venture Arrangements.

[As__at|As at 319 |\°
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31 March 24
March
I 25 ;

1 Prime - Giriraj-KK (JV) 25% 250 |

2 Dev Engineers - Giriraj (1V) 25% 25%

3 Moksha Construction Giriraj (JV) - 36%

4 RK Madani & Giriraj (JV) 1 40% | 40%

5 | MBPL-GCDL (V) 49% | 49%

6 GCDL-SMBIPL (JV) 49% 49%

7 Giriraj GSEPL Consortium (JV) 70% | 70%

8 Giriraj-KK (1V) 51% | 51%

NOTE NO 35 Deposit Paid- EMD

The Parent company has paid an advance deposit of Rs, 3161.05 Lakhs to Mexsa A Realtors and
Developers Limited against work orders pertaining to residential and commercial building
projects. The consideration for these projects will be received partly in cash and partly in the
form of allocated space within the building. The company intends to directly sell the allocated
area to third parties after confirmation from Nexsa A Realtors and Developers Limited.

NOTE NO 36 DEPOSIT -PROJECT EXPLORATION

The Parent Company has paid a deposit of Rs. 3332.31 Lacs to a third party for identifying
potential project opportunities. No specific project has been finalized., Upon receiving a
satisfactory report, the Parent Company may consider a joint development work or as per
mutually decided by party. The deposit is classified under Non-Current Assets as "Deposit -
Project Exploration". No impairment has been recognized as of the reporting date.

Note No 37- CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every
financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy.
The Company became liable to undertake CSR activities from the financial year 2024-25, as it
met the applicability criteria for the first time. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as

under:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31% March 2025 31% March 2024
1.Gross amount required to be spent by the | 16.07 lacs Mot Applicable
_Company during the year e
Z2.Amount approved by the Board to be spent during | 16.52 Lacs Mot Applicable
the year SO | | )
3. Amount of Expenditure incurred on: Not Applicable
On Construction/ acguisition of any asset* -
| On purposes other than above Rs 16.52 Lac . N =
il P Not Applicable
Mot Applicable
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! 6. Nature of CSR Activities

7. Details of related party transactions in relation to | None
CSR expenditure

MEDICAL AND | Not Applicable
HEALTH CARE
SUPPORT

Mot Applicable

Mote No 38 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-15 Employee benefit

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of

employment.

Mote No 39 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-19 Gratuity provision

Provision of gratuity liabilities for the financial year 2024-25 made during year on the basis of
valuation report.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particular FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24
i % Actuarial Assumption
i. Discount Rate i 6.85% P.A. | 7.20% P.A.
ii. Rate of increase in compensation 7.00% P.A. 7.00% P.A,
iii. Employee Attrition rate ([ Past service : | 10.00% P.A. | 10.00% P.A.
0-42) P 2R =l
iv. Expected average remaining service
v. The estimate of future salary increases, | 10.00% P.A. | 10.00% P.A.
considered in actuarial valuation takes into |at vyounger | at  younger
account inflation, seniority, promotion and | ages ages
other relevant factors such as supply and | reducing to | reducing to
demand factors in the employment market | 2.00% P.A | 2.00% P.A at
at clder | older ages
RSN v S T ]
2. Changes in the Present Value of Obligations
i. Present Value of Obligation at the beginning 6.05 4.02
of the year
ii. Current Service cost 2.16 2.09
iii. Interest Cost [ 0.43 _ 0.29 |
| iv. Past Service cost = ks
v. Benefits paid -- -=
vi. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Defined Benefit {1.00) (0.34)
obligation
vii. Present Value of Obligation at the end of 7.64 6.05
the wvyear Bl
3. Amounts to be recognised in the Balance == =
Sheet
i. Present Value of Obligation at the end of the 7.64 6.05
AT year
_— ii. Fair value of plan assets at end of | o= i
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| period .
iil. Funded Status = G
iv. Unrecognized Actuarial Gain/{Loss) e it

v. Unrecognized Past service Cost-non vested -- -

benefits L b
vi. Met Asset/(Liability) recognized in the 7.64 | 6.05
~ balance Sheet
4, Expense recognized in the statement of P&L
Afc =
i. Current Service Cost ) 2.16 2.09
ii. Interest cost 0.43 0.29

ili. Past Service Cost-{non vested benefits) == =
iv. Past Service Cost-(vested benefits) = =
v. Unrecognised Past service cost- non vested s =

benefits
vi. Met Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for (1.00) {0.35)
the period
vii, Expense (Income) recognized in the {1.59) (2.04)
statement of P & L A/c
5. Movements in the Liability recognised in Nl
Balance Sheet
. Opening Net Liability 6.06 4.02
ii. Expenses (Income) as above 1.59 2.04
iii. Contribution paid = S
iv. Closing Net Liability 6.06
8.64
6. Revised Schedule VI -y
i. Current Liability 0.30 0.30
ii. Non-current liability 5.76 5.76

Mote No 40 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-20 Earning per Share
{Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars F.Y.2023-24 F.¥.2022-23
Profit After Tax 1788.23 1012.27
Number of Shares (Face Value Rs.10/-) 2,39,20,500 2,39,20,500
Mumber of Shares under _wetghted 2,39,20,500 1,21,96,548
average (Face Value Rs,10/-)

~ Basic Earning per Share in Rs. 7.48 4.23

- Weighted Average Earning per Share in 7.48 B.30
Rs.

NOTE NO 41 Disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standard-18 Related party
transactions

The names of the related parties, key management personal, the nature of their
transactions and their values are given herein below:

Nature of Relationship
Director
=irector
L
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Krushang Shah HUF

Relative of Director

G

GIRIRAU

Relative of Director

Mamta Shah = Relative of Director
Reshal Shah Relative of Director
Quizal Shah Relative of Director

Jinalaya Infratech Pvt. Ltd.

Common Directors

Giriraj Corporation

Associate Concern

Krushang Enterprises

Associate Concern

GCDL-SMBIPL (JV)

_Associate Concern

MBPL-GCDL (JV)

Dev Engineers Giriraj JV

Associate Concern

Moksha Construction Giriraj JV

Associate Concern

Associate Concern

R.K. Madhani & Giriraj Civil JV

Associate Concern

Giriraj KK engingerring JV

Associate Concern

Giriraj Futurecon Private Limited

Associate Concern

GSEPL Giriraj JV

Associate Concern

Transactions with related parties

(Rs in Lakhs)

Name of Parties Particulars FY 2024-25 F.¥.2023-24
Krushang Shah Director Remuneration 24.00 24.00
Loan received 661.99 415.78
Loan repaid 554,26 550.15
Loan Given - 149.97
Loan received Back - 149.97
Interest Paid 43.27 =
Car Rental 3.00 1.00
Closing Balance 153.78 (15.53)
Prasham Shah Director Remuneration 7.20 -
Advance Paid 3.40 -
Closing Balance 2.50 -
Mahesh K. Shah Salary 24.00 9.00
Loan Repaid = 3.19
Closing Balance (17.00) (15.44)
Mamta M, Shah Loan Received 103.00 60.38
Loan Repaid 103.00 60.38
Loan Given : 23.69
Loan received Back - 23.69
Interest Paid - 0.53
Salary 12.00 9.00
Closing Balance (1.28) (0.41)
Reshal Shah Salary 6.00 7.50
Closing Balance {0.48)
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Quizal Shah Salary 12.00 12.00
Closing Balance (7.65)
(8.62)
Krushang Shah HUF Loan Received 2.00 e
Loan Repaid 2.00 s
Closing Balance o i
Giriraj Corporation Loan received Back 59.10 -
Interest Received 6.89 6.33
Closing Balance = 59.10
Krushang Enterprises Loan Given 0.21 =
Loan received Back 0.23 10.21
Interest Received 0.03 <
Closing Balance - 0.21
Jinalaya Infratech Private Limited | Deposit Received 2,500.00
Advances Received 1,850.00 -
Purchase of Goods -
Interest Paid 46.40 56.56
Loan received 422.94 605.44
Loan repaid 721,61 1,072.31
Loan Given L 68.56
Loan received Back L 68.56
Closing Balance (74.09) (326.35)
Depsoit Balance (cl. (4,350.00) 5
Balance)
MBPL-GCDL (JV) Sub Contract Receipt 680.24 3,248.34
Investment Made 24.41 14.38
Investment Withdrawn 65.62 "
Share of Profit (Loss) 3.49 34.90
Closing Balance 438.08 467.36
GCDL-SMBIPL (IV) Sub Contract Receipt 1,376.68 966.52
Investment Made 132.48 957.80
Investment Withdrawn 492.78 105.25
Other Income 53.39 £
Share of Profit {Loss) 23.43 5.71
Closing Balance 795.06 1,129.44
Dev Engineers Giriraj 1V Investment Made -
Share of Profit (Loss) .03
Closing Balance 1.95 1.93
Share of Profit (Loss) = =
Investment Withdrawn 6.25 .
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Closing Balance - 6.25
Prime-Giriraj-KK 1V Share of Profit (Loss) (8.43) 574
Investrment Made - -
Closing Balance 39.97 48.41
R.K. Madhani & Giriraj Civil IV Share of Profit (Loss) 23.82 56.59
Closing Balance 214.03 190.22
Giriraj GSEPL Consutium Share of Profit (Loss) 0.25 -
Investment made 919.90 -
Investment Withdrawn 900.67 -
Other Income 38.73 -
Closing Balance 58.20 =
Giriraj-KK 1V Share of Profit (Loss) 8.34 5
Investment Made 5 E
Closing Balance 8.34
Giriraj Futurecon Private Limited Loan Given 0.01 5
Closing Balance 0.01 -

{ ) indicate credit balance
NOTE NO 42 Termination of Projects-

During the financial year, the Railway Department cancelled the following tenders
awarded to the Parent Company-

1 "On 9th January 2025 - Cancellation of the tender for upgradation and beautification of five
stations: Marine Lines, Charni Road, Grant Road, Lower Parel, and Prabhadevi, The scheduled
work duration was 7 months.

2 On 30th December 2024 - Cancellation of the tender for upgradation and beautification of
Umbergaon, Sanjan, and Vapi stations. The scheduled work duration was 7 months.

3 "On 28™ April 2025, the Railway department cancelled a tender for Provision of FOB, COP at
various stations between Isharwara-Aslana section, conversion of goods platform to passenger
platform (PF-No-4), Raising, Flooring PF No-1, raising widening & flooring of PF No. 2/3 & supply,
Fabrication, erection and launching of composite girder at important Bridge No-1066/1 between
Lidhora-Girwar station in connection with proposed 3rd line in Bina Katni Section. The nature of
the work was regarding the upgradation of stations and conversion of platforms for easy of
passengers and improving the efficiency of the platforms in terms of passenger handling, building
Fobs etc. The said work duration was of 12 months.

All the above terminations have been classified by the Company as unlawful. Consequently, the
Company has initiated legal arbitration proceedings against the Railway Department. As of
the reporting date, the pre-resolution and arbitration processes are ongoing.

Financial Disclosure:

As per the financial records, the following amounts are associated with the above projects:
« Stock pertaining to the projects: # 180.16 lakhs
. Earnest Money Depasit (EMD} Z 26.69 lakhs
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Based on management representation, there is no financial impact recognized in the
current financial statements arising from the above terminations. The Company expects a
favourable resolution and therefore, no provisions or write-downs have been made in respect
of the stock, EMD, or bank guarantee as of the balance sheet date.

The Company continues to closely monitor the legal proceedings and will account for any
financial impact, if necessary, upon the conclusion of the arbitration,

NOTE NO 43 CONTINGENT LIABLITES

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the books of accounts as on 31st March 2025 amount
to ¥ 3898.59 Lakhs (Previous Year: ¥ 3199.69 Lakhs) towards bank guarantees issued to
various government authorities. Additionally, an amount of #155.97 lakhs (Previous Year:
2155.97 lakhs) pertains to disputed income tax liabilities for which the Parent Company has
filed an appeal before the appropriate appellate authority. The Parent Company has also filed
an appeal against GST liabilities amounting to #1,940.87 lakhs towards interest and penalty,
which are currently under dispute.

Based on management assessment and legal advice, no provision has been made in the
financial statements as the Parent Company expects a favourable outcome in all the above
matters,

NOTE NO 44 Reporting on others disclosures:

Loan & advances, sundry debtors, sundry creditors and other liabilities are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation. The balances are therefore as per the books of accounts.,

In the opinion of Directors, provisions for all known liabilities have been made in the accounts,

No commission has been paid to the directors and only the remuneration by way of salary has
been paid to the directors as per the section 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013 as under:

- | (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars F.¥.2024-25 F.Y.2023-24

Salaries -~ 31.20 24.00

Contribution to Provident Fu n;:i _ - =
 Total 31.20 | 24.00

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

The Group does not have any transactions with Companies whose name has been struck off
from the register of Companies.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar
of companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.,

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the year.

plied with number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Act read
X, (Restriction on number of Layers) Rujes=2Q

o
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i. The Group has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority in current year and previous year,

j. The Group financial ratios as per Schedule I1I requirement are as under;

Ratios Numerator/Denominator | F.Y. F.Y. % of Remarks
) | 2024-25 | 2023-24 | Variance ]
Current Current Assets / Current -
Ratio Liabilities [ 1.97 1.96 0.77% il
Debt Equity | Total Debt / Shareholder's Ratio increased due
Ratio Equity to increase in debt &
increase in
- 0.20 0.10 96.03% | Shareholder’'s equity
Debt Service | Operating income [/ Total -
Coverage debt service
| Ratio 0.90 i T o F T R 2
Return on | Net Profit after Tax / Increase in Met
Equity Ratio | Average Shareholder’s Profit compare to
equity 0.15 0.12 25.48% | Previous Year
Inventory Cost of Goods Sold [/ Ratio increased due to
Turnover Average Inventory increase in cost of
goods sold compare
to increase of average
Lo 4,87 3.82 27.51% |inventory
Trade Annual Credit Sales [/ -
Receivables | Average Accounts Receivable
Turnover
Ratio 6.11 6.57 -7.05%
Trade Met Credit Purchase /[ Due to increase of
Payable Average Trade Payable purchase of Trade
Turnover Credit.
| Ratio 5.49 3.71 | 48.05%
MNet Capital | Net sales / Average Working =
Turnover Capital
Ratio 3.82 3.83 5.37%
Met Profit | Net Profit after Tax / Net -
Ratio Sales 0.06 0.06 -2.02% =
Return  on | Earnings before Interest & f
Capital Taxes / Capital Employed
Emploved 0.14 0,14 4,08%
k. The Group has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and

other parties. So far as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned, the
balance confirmation letters were sent to the parties. Balances of some of the Trade

Receivables,

Other Assets,

Trade

and

Other

Payables

are subject to

confirmations/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are
carried out on on- going basis. However, management does not expect to have any
material financial impact of such pending confirmations reconciliations.

I.  AUDIT TRAIL (EDIT LOG) FEATURE IN THE ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) introduced a new requirement for companies under the
proviso
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maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in
the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the
audit trail cannot be disabled.

Parent Company using the audit trail in FY 2024-25.

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year

There are certain charges which are historical in nature, and it involves practical
challenges in obtaining no-objection certificates (NOCs) and/or getting requisite
formalities completed towards charge satisfaction from the charge holders of such
charges, despite repayment of the underlying loans. The Company is in the continuous
process of getting the charge satisfaction e-form filed and processed with MCA, within
the timelines, as and when it receives NOCs/confirmation from the respective charge
holders.”

Certain reclassifications and recasting have been made to the comparative period’s
financial statements to enhance comparability with the current year’s financial statements.
These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations.

As per Our report of even date

For RHA D & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant o

Krushang Shah rasham Shah

Dinesh B%

Partner e Managing Director Executive Director
M.No. 036247 ’ DIN: 07198525 DIN: 09540340
Josfpes”
y
Place: Mumbai Shashikant. J. Rathod Ty Ponsmp"\

Date: 29*" May 2025 Chief Financial Officer mPaTN Senseda
UDIN 250362 4T8M LWl T160 == 3 g

o 23 Ma& 204
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

20™ Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 30™ September 2025 at 1.00 p.m. at the registered office of
the Company.

Registered Folio / DP ID and Client ID

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

I/ We hereby record my / our presence at the 20™ Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 30™ September
2025 at 1.00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company.

Member’s Folio / DP ID- Client Member’s/ Proxy’s name in Block Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature
ID No. Letters

NOTES:
1. Only Member/ Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.

2. Please complete the Folio/ DP ID-Client ID No. and name of the Member/ Proxy, sign this Attendance Slip and
hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

3. Shareholder/ Proxy holder desiring to attend the Meeting should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the Meeting.
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2" Floor, Nine Square, Ramdas Sutrale Marg, Off Chandavarkar Lane, Borivali West, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India, 400092. Website -www.giriraj.co
Email address — compliance@giriraj.co Contact No. 022-2890635

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member

Registered Address

E-Mail Id

Folio No/Client ID

DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of _equity shares of Giriraj Civil Developers Limited, hereby appoint:

(1)

0 - 11 N o E OSSP Signature... ...ccoceeeennneen. or failing him; as

my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 30" September 2025, at 1:00 P.M. at
the aforementioned registered office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

| wish my above proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Sr. No. Resolutions For | Against| Abstain

Ordinary Business -Ordinary Resolution

1. To receive, consider, and adopt the standalone and
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025, and the Reports of the Board
of Directors and the Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Prasham Nitin Shah
(DIN: 09540340), Director, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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Special Business -Ordinary Resolution

3. To appoint Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

4, Approval of the appointment of Mrs. Bhumika Atul Dedhia
as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of
five years.

5. Approval of the appointment of Mr. Rohan Vilas Jadhav as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Special Business -Special Resolution

6. To Sell, Lease, Mortgage or otherwise disposed of whole or
substantially whole of the undertaking of the Company

7. Increasing the overall borrowing powers under Section
180(1)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Making Investment(s) and/or providing loan(s) and give
guarantee(s) in excess of the prescribed limits Under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. Related party transactions under section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

10. Increase in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Krushang M.
Shah, Managing Director of the Company.

11. Increase in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Prasham Nitin
Shah, Executive Director of the Company.

12. To re-appoint Mr. Radhakrishnan Pillai as Independent
Director of the Company for a period of five years.

Signed this day of

Notes:

2025

Affix
Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Member(s)

(1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
(2) A Proxy need not to be a member of the Company.
(3) Please put a ‘X’ in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective resolution. If you
leave the ‘For’, ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy

will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she think appropriate.
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G Compliance Giriraj <compliance@giriraj.co>
GIRIRAUJ

20th Annual General Meeting of the members of Giriraj Civil Developers Limited
will be held on Tuesday, 30TH September 2025 at 1:00 P.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company

Prajakta Pawle <PrajaktaP@nsdl.com> Mon, Sep 8, 2025 at 11:29 AM
To: Compliance Giriraj <compliance@Jgiriraj.co>

Cc: Shruthi Shetty <ShruthiS@nsdl.com>, Smith Gulve <Smith.Gulve@nsdl.com>, Nihar Kudaskar
<Nihar.Kudaskar@nsdl.com>, Pallavi Mhatre <pallavid@nsdl.com>, Amit Vishal <AmitV@nsdl.com>, "Msuketh.Shetty"
<Msuketh.Shetty@nsdl.com>

Dear Sir /Madam,

We refer to the electronic voting facility provided by NSDL in respect of ensuing e-Voting for GIRIRAJ CIVIL
DEVELOPERS LIMITED - EVEN 137016.

In this regard, we wish to confirm that the email communication has been sent to 645 shareholders on September 8,
2025.

This is for your information and records.

For further information, the bounce cases file will be kept in RTA’'s Login after T+2 days. You are requested to Check
with the RTA for the same.

Note: This is with reference to the e-Voting event of your esteemed company. In this regard, please note that in line
with SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, The listed entity shall provide the details of the upcoming events requiring
voting to the Depository. In view of the aforesaid, you are requested to update the upcoming e-Voting details on Issuer
Portal of NSDL on an immediate basis. Link to login on issuer portal: https://eservices.nsdl.com/Auth/#/.
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